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To become our customers’ preferred strategic partner in the
acoustics and electronics industries.
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Through advancements in innovative technologies, we strive to
provide value-added and distinct products to our customers.
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VALUES RER

We, as a partner, abide by our commitment to our customers.
We, as an innovator, relentlessly pursue excellence.

We, as a team, cross the finish line together.

We, as a corporate citizen, devote ourselves to the prosperity
of our society.
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MEHEE

ﬂFinanciaI Highlights

For the year ended 31 March HE3A318 ILFE

2020 2019 Change #1t
Operating results BEXEE
Gross profit margin (%) FE K (%) 19.4 183  1.1pts BB
Operating profit margin (%) £ F B (%) 5.2 6.0 -0.8pts BB
Net profit margin (%) 4 1) 2= (%) 2.3 29 -0.6pts ADE
Return on equity holders (%) HEmiEa ADHRE (%) 4.5 6.0 -1.5pts AN
Financial position B AR
Total assets (HK$'000) BEE(TET) 948,472 1,040,656 -8.9%
Cash and bank deposits (HK$'000) Be METER(TBT) 421,768 263,137 60.3%
Shareholders’ equity (HK$'000) MR s (F&TT) 650,252 673,093 -3.4%
Financial ratio B b =&
Current ratio (Times) mENEEEE (%) 3.5 2.9 20.7%
Quick ratio (Times) RENELFE(1F) 2.7 1.9 42.1%
Turnover ratio L=
Inventory turnover (days) FEREE(H) 88 87 1.1%
Trade receivables turnover (days) FEWEREE(H) 62 63 -1.6%
Trade payables turnover (days) FERBREE(H) 90 80 12.5%
Operating cycle (days) “EREE(H) 60 70 -14.3%
Dividends per share (HK cents) FREE (BAW) 5.0 9.0 -44.4%
Interim Fh Hf 2.0 4.0 -50.0%
Final RHA 3.0 5.0 -40.0%
Revenue & A Shareholders’ equity i R 25 Dividends per share E &g 2
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Financial Summary

MBRE

The following is a summary of the consolidated statement of comprehensive AT AE+SBEERBER AR (TART ) RHHE
income and consolidated statement of financial position of Fujikon Industrial AT 2 &4 2 ENEEREAVBRIRZRE
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries:

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income mETHERERE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Revenue WA 1,250,173 1,411,795 1,226,121 1,155,334 1,160,220
Cost of sales SHE AR (1,007,807) (1,154,092)  (978,377) (968,815  (959,963)
Gross profit EF 242,366 257,703 247,744 186,519 200,257
Other gains/(losses) — net HEiplezs /(E518) — 38 1,433 8,046 (15,973) 12,465 3,221
Distribution and selling expenses 788 R EHE T (9,789) (14,293) (12,903) (14,718) (14,409)
General and administrative expenses —#& & 777 (163,735) (166,569) (154,662) (153,286) (164,354)

(Provision)/reversal of provision for  fEU S FORIE (B4 ),/

impairment of trade receivables (o] 2% (5,067) (871) 2,105 (2,064) (308)
Operating profit RN 65,208 84,016 66,311 28,916 24,407
Finance income — net BEUMA — F5E 4,720 4,572 3,278 2,193 5,983
Profit before income tax B AT 1S B4 Al A1) 69,928 88,588 69,589 31,109 30,390
Income tax expenses Fri5 s i (18,047) (19,620) (15,310) (6,808) (5,424)
Profit for the year FEWiE A 51,881 68,968 54,279 24,301 24,966
Attributable to: BB

Equity holders of the Company KANRIIRIEREAF A 28,991 40,490 30,518 2,770 11,259

Non-controlling interests FEFE I R A 22,890 28,478 23,761 21,531 13,707

51,881 68,968 54,279 24,301 24,966

3§ 201920200 3 ELSEEZRERA
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Financial Summary
MBRE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position SERBRRR
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets EmBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - B MR 113,119 142,442 137,898 130,381 155,771
Investment properties "EME 1,500 1,400 1,200 1,050 3,530
Right-of-use assets ERAREEE 24,419 - - - -
Land use rights T+ A - 3,879 4,316 4,047 4,478
Non-current deposits and other EmBie REMEE
assets 2,417 4,812 2,758 3,713 1,930
Available-for-sale financial assets At B & B 75 & &= - - 3,928 4,116 6,926
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEMEE
through other comprehensive Weas BB 765 & B
income 4,063 3,979 - - -
Deferred income tax assets EEFFEREE 8,543 6,644 5,836 4,786 3,904
Total non-current assets FEREEERE 154,061 163,156 155,936 148,093 176,539
Current assets MENEE
Inventories e 172,582 313,876 237,11 158,697 169,959
Trade receivables B E K 168,276 258,226 228,332 214,005 217,969
Other receivables H b fE U I8 30,021 39,149 30,005 24,444 12,629
Financial assets at fair value AT EFABER
through profit or loss S EE 1,448 2,109 2,145 2,938 2,523
Current income tax recoverable G E R 316 1,003 61 710 251
Cash and cash equivalents HWENRREEEY 421,768 263,137 408,633 455,945 415,877
Total current assets MEVEEBE 794,411 877,500 906,287 856,739 819,208
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade payables ERER 108,809 173,121 205,668 194,740 140,904
Contract liabilities, accruals and BHBE ETERL
other payables HipER R 106,429 125,690 100,078 78,931 74,189
Lease liabilities HEBE 6,880 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA - - - 3,870 8,372
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHAaE 4,714 4,805 10,044 14,210 17,625
Total current liabilities RBBERE 226,832 303,616 315,790 291,751 241,090
_Netcurrentassets  ABEESE 567,579 573,884 590,497 564988 578118
Total assets less current liabilities EEERTEAE 721,640 737,040 746,433 713,081 754,657
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,940 - - - _
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEERAaE 1,825 2,184 1,491 700 1,195
___ Total non-current liabilities __: SERBAERE 5765 2184 1491 700 1,195
Net assets BEFE 715,875 734,856 744,942 712,381 753,462

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited 4 Annual Report 2019/2020



Financial Summary
HBRE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continved) %S BITEIRIRE (&)

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Equity e
Capital and reserves attributable to SREBARRAIREFEAZ
the Company’s equity holders A& A 2 GE s
Share capital N 42,584 42,584 42,107 42,026 42,019
Other reserves HAbE 151,280 171,771 191,739 156,810 182,890
Retained earnings REE & F
— Proposed dividends —BERE 12,775 21,292 21,053 29,418 21,010
— Others —Hfth 443,613 437,446 435,221 436,522 467,312
650,252 673,093 690,120 664,776 713,231
Non-controlling interests FESESI M R 65,623 61,763 54,822 47,605 40,231
Total equity A 715,875 734,856 744,942 712,381 753,462

%R 2019/2020 5 ETESEXERERAT
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ﬂChairman’s Statement

EFRBE

To our shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“Fujikon” or the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2020.

Over the past financial year, many industries have been confronted by
tremendous challenges arising from global economic instability, principally
attributed to the unresolved trade dispute between China and the US
(the “Trade War"). As the outbreak of COVID-19 (the “Epidemic”) in late
2019 became a pandemic, global economic activity declined significantly.
Manufacturing activities were largely suspended and public life began
grinding to a halt, as many countries around the world imposed strict anti-
epidemic measures.

While the aforementioned developments are unprecedented, we have
witnessed troughs and peaks in the more than three decades that we have
been in operation. What is more, we have witnessed rapid development
of the electro-acoustic industry in the increasingly unpredictable market
conditions that Fujikon operates in: the new normal.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited 6

Johnny Yeung £ E#
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
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While there are increasing uncertainties in the global economy, the
challenges may lead to another round of industry consolidation where only
the strongest will survive. To excel in such a competitive environment and
realise the Fujikon vision of becoming a preferred strategic partner in the
electro-acoustic industry, we will continue to direct our attention to leading
brands that possess high-growth potential. Furthermore, we will leverage
our unflagging passion, which has been the catalyst for the application of
numerous technological achievements. And we will draw on our commitment,
which is clearly evident by Fujikon's focus on electro-acoustic products since
inception. Above all, we will rely on our perseverance, which has enabled us
to overcome one challenge after another. By drawing on all these qualities,
we will further Fujikon's ascendance and equip it with the capabilities to
strengthen its prominent position in the vanguard of change.

As challenges and opportunities often coexist, we will seek to leverage the
former to seize the latter. Recently, we have seen the rise in demand for Call
Centre & Office ("CC&0") products in the wake of the Epidemic. With social
distancing now the norm, there has been an uplift in demand for audio and
video conferencing products. We have consequently leveraged our portfolio
of advanced and innovative technologies in developing more CC&O products.
This product segment possesses high entry barriers, as various certifications
are required prior to product launches.

As tensions between China and the US intensify, we are fully aware that
volatility will correspondingly increase. We thus hold reservations about the
business outlook in the coming few months. We will observe closely the
market dynamic and remain fluid to the evolving conditions. Although the
Group's customers have been taking a cautious approach towards placing
orders, we have noticed that certain audio brands have continued to invest
in product development with us — an indication of their confidence in the
mid to long-term prospects of the industry. Therefore, we will continue to
focus on strengthening partnerships with key customers that lead to mutually
sustainable development. In addition, as both a veteran and pioneer of
electro-acoustic products with advanced technologies, we will leverage our
expertise as well as dedication to product development, and engineering
and manufacturing excellence to introduce more breakthroughs in the
years ahead. In this way, we will be well positioned to identify and capture
opportunities that arise from ever-changing industry trends.

We will remain committed to fortifying our business foundation and raising
our competitiveness, as well as capitalising on the Group’s engineering
and manufacturing prowess, to achieve greater product differentiation and
market leadership.

Dividends

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0 cents
per ordinary share. Together with an interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per
share already paid, a total payout of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share will be
distributed to shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2020.

£4§ 20192020  /

Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

EEREETEERFEMAOBERT - KLRTAEE
SIEHM—WMITEEBE  MERESTBUEF - RTHE
ARGHFRBPRANL  BHIERELSNER—
KRABBEREENKEBAERH  BRABKERE
REBRIERBNNREME - 1o - RAIKRETH
SRBRA REZERMARER - BHZTEA]
D BREBINEBRER - RAEEMNE  BABR
EEMAENBES  BATRAORREE - HEMEE
BHE BLIeERBEsE  UIEEBEREEK =
%8 e T S HAL

RBETAESERE  BRIEHEE—HK - o
o ARRIERE - PO R AR (LR
WMAZEDERBTREE RELXEBRREKSE
B wBEAMAERERT RN - AR &I
BPMARBELENFRMAS @ FAREZWUH
DEBRAZTER BRERELHNANGEREES -
THERDBRERSHEAPE -

HAREXERBEME - BT EZRBEEMA - E
HHRMHSRRBANEBHZBERRE - HAEED
MAImSHRE  BAERYMAEL BAXKEERFP
REOEERTERE  BUIBINETEERMBER
BMERERMHAZRER  AIREPHTENTRRHE
RASELTR - Bt MK THMERETRER,
MBHEAR  RESHHFATHEERR - WHN R
TERMEBEMNOITREEE  RAGBEEEN
BERAH BOETEMAE  BESUNTRENER
B NFRARBEREGEZRE - FUEES
FEN UBERIVIEEEREEENTERERBEF
BIRRI T -

BIE— P ERARBERAREAGF S - AREE
AEENTREMGERN  REEEER BF -
#E T IN5R T IH AL -

Bz B
BEECESARETREBRABKE3.08 - ERE
IR A B9 R BRRR B AR2.075 (L - B 22020F3A318 b
FEMAKRERELEE SR LRAS.08 -

EXTSEXERERAA



P
2

Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Appreciation

| would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to the
management team and the entire Fujikon workforce for their diligence and
dedication during the past financial year. Also, | would like to express my
appreciation on behalf of Fujikon to our business partners, shareholders and
customers for their steadfast support and trust in the Group.

Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny
Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 June 2020

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited 8
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business review

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “review year”), the Group recorded
revenue of HK$1,250.2 million (2019: HK$1,411.8 million), representing
a year-on-year decline of 11.4%. The contraction was principally due to
ongoing trade tensions between China and the US (the “Trade War") and
the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (the “Epidemic” or “COVID-19") in
late 2019. Due to lower revenue and increase in the provision for obsolete
stock, gross profit slipped to HK$242.4 million (2019: HK$257.7 million),
while gross profit margin increased modestly to 19.4% (2019: 18.3%) owing
to a reduction in labour cost. Profit attributable to equity holders amounted
to HK$29.0 million (2019: HK$40.5 million), a year-on-year decline of 28.4%,
which was mainly due to lower revenue; decrease in net exchange gains; and
increase in the provision for impairment of trade receivables. Basic earnings
per share were HK6.8 cents (2019: HK9.6 cents).

Business segment analysis

Headsets and Headphones

During the review year, the headsets and headphones business generated
HK$913.8 million (2019: HK$1,077.4 million) in segmental revenue, and
thus accounted for 73.1% of the Group’s total revenue. The decline in top
line was principally due to the protracted Trade War, compounded by the
outbreak of COVID-19, which resulted in a more prudent approach adopted
by the Group's customers.

The Epidemic has introduced unprecedented challenges to the world.
As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 3 March 2020 (the
"Announcement”), the Group's headsets and headphones business
has gradually resumed operation since 10 February 2020 following a
precautionary citywide shutdown in China. However, there was still an
inevitable delay in provision of raw materials and parts from the Group's
suppliers. This has resulted in a decline in the Group's production capacity
as well as delay in production schedules and product delivery. In response,
the Group has taken comprehensive steps at raising efficiency across its
supply chain, including recruiting more workers and closely communicating
with suppliers, as well as liaising with customers to adjust their delivery
schedules.

£4§ 20192020 9
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Business segment analysis (Continued)

Headsets and Headphones (Continued)

In spite of the testing environment, the Group has maintained its focus on
developing products featuring various technologies, in particular, Bluetooth,
True Wireless, Active Noise Cancellation (“ANC") and Hybrid ANC. Such
efforts have enabled the Group to refine its customer portfolio by tapping
demand from top-tier customers in the market, many of whom have high
growth potential.

Accessories and Components

The Epidemic also affected the packaging business of the accessories and
components segment, as delays in the resumption of certain customers’
operations led to a decline in deliveries of packaging products. As stated in
the Announcement, the Group endeavoured to liaise with its customers to
adjust delivery schedules in a bid to minimise any negative economic impact
on various fronts. Consequently, this segment was still able to contribute
stable revenue to the Group, totalling HK$336.4 million (2019: HK$334.4
million) as at 31 March 2020, and thereby accounting for 26.9% of the
Group's total revenue.

Prospects

Going forward, the macroeconomic environment is set to remain challenging.
On top of the existing Trade War, there is the growing possibility that the US
will impose sanctions on China over the Epidemic. This has raised concerns
about another round of dispute between the two countries. Therefore,
the Group expects its customers will adopt a more conservative approach
towards placing orders. Fujikon thus holds reservation about its business
performance in the coming year, and will continue to pay close attention
to the macroeconomic environment and is committed to implementing
contingency plans in a timely manner.

With challenges come opportunities, and this is clearly evident in relation to
the Call Centre & Office (“CC&0") product segment, which includes audio
and video conferencing related products that have experienced a surge in
demand in the wake of the Epidemic. Leveraging its capacity to develop
advanced and innovative products featuring the latest technologies, the
Group is tapping demand for CC&O products. These products have to meet
stringent requirements backed by relevant certifications — a testament to
the versatility and adaptability of Fujikon products, as well as the Group’s
effectiveness in addressing customers’ needs. Looking ahead, the Group will
continue to spare no effort in exploring segments that possess high growth
potential and value.

10

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Prospects (Continued)

The year 2020 is set to be a tumultuous period owing to the tense Sino-US
relations and the crisis and aftermath of COVID-19. Nonetheless, Fujikon's
customers’ commitment to the co-development of new products reflects their
confidence in the long-term prospects of the electro-acoustic industry. The
Group will therefore continue adhering fully to its core strategy of building
strong engineering and manufacturing capabilities for developing advanced
and customisable electro-acoustic products. Furthermore, the Group will
continue directing efforts towards restructuring its supply chain to secure a
stable source of critical components in a cost-effective manner. It will also
raise operational efficiency through continuous investment in IT systems
and equipment, with the aim of optimally employing human and physical
resources. In this way, Fujikon will be well-equipped to overcome whatever
adversities that may appear, and remain fully dedicated to preserving its
market leadership while creating greater value for its shareholders.

Financial review

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintained at a strong financial position. Net current assets
as at 31 March 2020 amounted to approximately HK$567.6 million (2019:
HK$573.9 million). The Group's current and quick ratios were approximately
3.5 times (2019: 2.9 times) and 2.7 times (2019: 1.9 times), respectively.

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$421.8 million
as at 31 March 2020, representing an increase of approximately 60.3%
against approximately HK$263.1 million as at 31 March 2019. Approximately
57.9%, 36.0% and 5.2% of the total cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars respectively,
and the remainders were in other currencies. As at 31 March 2020, the
Group had aggregated banking facilities of approximately HK$160.6 million
(2019: HK$160.6 million) for loans and trade financing, which were fully
available for use.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and China with most transactions
settled in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group is mainly
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they relate.

During the year, the Group had recorded a net foreign exchange gain of
approximately HK$1.7 million (2019: HK$7.1 million) mainly due to the
depreciation of Renminbi.

The recent fluctuation of Renminbi directly affected our operating costs.

The Group will continuously monitor and enter foreign exchange forward
contracts where appropriate.

£4§ 20192020 11
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Financial review (Continued)

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2020, the Group employed a total of approximately
3,300 (2019: 4,500) employees. The staff costs (including the directors’
emoluments) accounted for approximately HK$361.7 million during the year
(2019: HK$397.8 million).

The Group has developed its human resources policies and procedures based
on performance and merit. Employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the general framework of its salary and bonus system.
Discretionary bonus is linked to the profit performance of the Group as well
as individual performance. Benefits include staff accommodation, medical
schemes, share option scheme, Mandatory Provident Fund for employees in
Hong Kong and state-sponsored retirement plans for employees in China.
The Group has also developed training programs to its management and
employees to ensure they are properly trained.

Financial Guarantee

As at 31 March 2020, the Company had provided corporate guarantees of
approximately HK$155.7 million (2019: HK$155.7 million) to secure banking
facilities of its subsidiaries. No facilities were utilised by the subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2020 and 2019.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Director

Mr. YEUNG Chi Hung, Johnny, M.H., aged 75, is a co-founder of the
Group. He has been the Chairman and an executive Director since 2000 and
was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 October 2011.
Mr. Yeung is responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
development of the Group. He is instrumental in the formulation and
implementation of the business policies of the Group. Mr. Yeung was elected
the Honorary Fellowship 2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong
Kong Industries, Directors of The Year Awards 2007 (executive Director):
Listed Companies (SEHK — Non Hang Seng Index Constituents) by The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. In 2014, he was awarded the University Fellow
of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, re-elected the Industrial Fellow of
Warwick University and the Medal of Honour (“M. H.") at the Seventeenth
Anniversary of the Establishment of the HKSAR. Mr. Yeung has over 50 years
of experience in the electronics and acoustics industry and he was elected
the Outstanding Achievement Award of Hong Kong Electronics Industry
Council in April 2018. In addition, Mr. Yeung is the Executive Committee
Member of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, the
President of Hong Kong Wong Tai Sin Industry and Commerce Association,
the Member of Innovation and Technology Training Board of the Vocational
Training Council, the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Electronics Industries
Association and the Honorary Chairman & the Vice Chairman of Dongguan
Electronics Industries Association, the Deputy Supervisor and the President
of Humen Branch of Dongguan City Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment respectively and also the Trustee of Bright Future Charitable
Foundation. Mr. Yeung is the father of Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben, an
executive Director of the Company.

Mr. YUEN Yee Sai, Simon, aged 78, is a co-founder of the Group. He has
been the Joint Deputy Chairman and an executive Director since 2000. Mr.
Yuen is responsible for the overall strategic planning of production and
operation related affairs of the Group. He was elected the Associateship
2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries. Mr.
Yuen has over 50 years of experience in the electronics industry and has
in depth knowledge of trading in the PRC. In addition, he is the Honorary
Citizen of Dongguan City and Humen Town. Mr. Yuen is the father of Mr.
Yuen Chi King, Wyman, an executive Director of the Company.

Mr. CHOW Man Yan, Michael, aged 71, is a co-founder of the Group. He
has been the Joint Deputy Chairman and an executive Director since 2000.
He is responsible for the overall strategic planning of related affairs of the
Group. Mr. Chow was elected the Associateship 2004 by The Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries and the Distinguished Service
for Community Building of the Secretary for Home Affairs’ Commendation
Scheme in the year of 2015-2016. He has over 50 years of experience in
the electronics and acoustics industry, especially in production and material
management and inventory control. Mr. Chow is the brother of Ms. Chow Lai
Fung, an executive Director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Director (Continued)

Mr. YUEN Chi King, Wyman, aged 45, is an executive Director of the
Group. Mr. Yuen joined the Group in August 2006 and is responsible for
overseeing the implementation of corporate strategy and the financial
functions of the Group. With effect from 1 April 2020, he was appointed
as the company secretary of the Company and is responsible for company
secretarial matters of the Group. Mr. Yuen graduated from the University
of Toronto, Canada with a Bachelor degree of Commerce and from Saint
Louis University, United States of America with a Master degree of Finance.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yuen has worked for a few regional financial
securities institutions and was responsible for the provision of corporate
finance advisory services. Mr. Yuen has more than 10 years of experience in
financial securities industry and he is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yuen is the son of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai,
Simon, the Joint Deputy Chairman of the Company.

Mr. YEUNG Siu Chung, Ben, aged 44, is an executive Director and Chief
Operating Officer of the Group. In November 2002, Mr. Yeung joined Fujikon
Industrial Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, in which he served in
numerous sales and marketing and project management positions for about
3 years. Mr. Yeung re-joined the Group as an executive Director in August
2007 and is responsible for overseeing the business development functions
and implementing the corporate strategy of the Group, and committed
to modernise the company’'s management system. He holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from Yale University in the United States
of America and a Bachelor of Science degree in International Business
from Pepperdine University in the United States of America. Mr. Yeung has
more than 10 years of working experience in an engineering and marketing
capacity. Mr. Yeung was elected 2013 Young Industrialist Awards of Hong
Kong by Federation of Hong Kong Industries and awarded the Most Valuable
Cl0 by BT Media/CSDN in 2014. In addition, Mr. Yeung is actively engaged
in different non-governmental organisations. He is a member of the National
Committee of CPPCC of Sihui County, a member of Executive Committee of
the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council, a member of the Entrepreneurs’
Organization (EO), a member of the Youth Committee of Beijing Chinese
Overseas Friendship Association (Hong Kong), a member of the Youth Officer
of Hong Kong Wong Tai Sin Industry & Commerce Association, a member of
the Young Executive Council of Federation of Hong Kong Industries and the
Current Advisor of the Yan Chai Hospital Board Office. He is the son of Mr.
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, who is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company.

Ms. CHOW Lai Fung, aged 56, is an executive Director of the Group. Ms.
Chow joined the Group in March 2001 and was appointed as an executive
Director on 1 August 2007. She is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
She graduated from the University of Missouri-Kansas City, United States of
America with a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting. She has over 20
years of experience in management, accounting and finance. Ms. Chow is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is
the sister of Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael, the Joint Deputy Chairman of the
Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Independent non-executive Director

Dr. CHUNG Chi Ping, Roy, aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of each of the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee of the Company on 1 April
2014,

Dr. Chung holds a Doctor of Engineering Degree from the University of
Warwick, United Kingdom and a Doctor of Business Administration Degree
from City University of Macau. He was re-appointed as an Industrial Professor
by the University of Warwick, United Kingdom in December 2015. Dr. Chung
was awarded a Doctor of Business Administration honoris causa by the
University of Macau and an Honorary Doctor of Science by the University of
Warwick, UK, in 2019, an Honorary Doctor of Business Administration by the
Lingnan University in 2015, an Honorary Doctor of Business Administration
by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007 and an Honorary Doctorate
Degree by the University of Newcastle, New South Wales, Australia in
2006. He was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) Medal and the Bronze
Bauhinia Star (BBS) Medal by The Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“The Government of the HKSAR") on 30 June 2017
and 1 July 2011 respectively. Dr. Chung was appointed as Justice of Peace by
The Government of the HKSAR on 1 July 2005. He won the Hong Kong Young
Industrialists Award in 1997 and was further awarded the Industrialist of the
Year in November 2014.

Dr. Chung is highly dedicated to the advancement of industry. He was the
Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries from July 2011 to July
2013 and has been the Honorary President of the Federation since 5 July
2013. In addition, Dr. Chung was appointed as the Chairman of Vocational
Training Council from 1 January 2018 until 31 December 2019 and he has
served on various HKSAR Government advisory committees. Dr. Chung is also
an active member of many social committees and associations. Dr. Chung
is the Founder and Chairman of Bright Future Charitable Foundation, and
whereby Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, executive Director of the Company, is
one of the trustees.

Dr. Chung is a co-founder and non-executive director of Techtronic Industries
Company Limited (stock code: 669), a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director of TK
Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 2283) and Vitasoy International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 345), both companies are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.
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Independent non-executive Director (Continued)

Mr. CHE Wai Hang, Allen, aged 52, had been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company for 4 years since March 2000. On June 2005, Mr.
Che re-joined the Company as an independent non-executive Director. He
holds a bachelor of laws degree and a postgraduate certificate in laws from
The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Che was admitted as a solicitor of the
Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1993 and also became as a member of The
Law Society of Hong Kong in the same year. Mr. Che has been practicing as
a solicitor in Hong Kong over 20 years and is currently a partner of Wong,
Hui & Co., Solicitors.

Mr. LEE Yiu Pun, aged 58, has been an independent non-executive Director
since June 2005. Mr. Lee holds a bachelor of commerce degree majoring in
accounting and marketing from the University of Calgary, Canada. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Lee worked as the group financial controller of S.A.S. Dragon Holdings
Limited from 1994 to 1999, the financial controller of Magician Industries
(Holdings) Limited from 1999 to 2000, and deputy finance director of
Henderson China Holdings Limited from 2000 to 2001, all of which are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee is currently the vice president of
finance of a private group of companies.

Senior Management

Mr. MAN Yu Ming, aged 80, is the Managing Director of Fujikon Packing
Material Company Limited. He joined the Group in July 1987.

Mr. CHEUNG Ying Chun, aged 67, is the Managing Director of Fujikon
Precision Metal Products Limited. He joined the Group in September 1988.

Mr. LAM Man Tai, Vincent, aged 53, is an Executive Vice President of
Operation of Fujikon Industrial Company Limited. He joined the Group in
March 2012.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the
"Company”) have the pleasure of presenting the annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Principal activities and segment analysis of operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by segment
information is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business review

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion
on the Group’s future business development are set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 6 to 12 of this annual report.

A summary of the key performance indicators of the Group is set out in the
section headed “Financial Highlights” on page 2 of this annual report. No
important event affecting the Group has occurred since the year-end date 31
March 2020.

The business operations and results may be affected by various factors.
The discussion of principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 12 of this annual report. The
financial risk factors are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of risk management are set out in the section headed
"Corporate Governance Report” under the paragraph headed “Risk
management and internal control” on pages 38 to 39 of this annual report.

In addition, discussions on the environmental policies and performance,
compliance with the relevant local laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group and the account of the key relationships of
the Group with its employees, customers and suppliers are set out in the
section headed "Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 46
to 72 of this annual report.
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Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 81 of this annual report.

Dividends

An interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share was paid during
the year. The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK3.0 cents per ordinary share (the “Dividend”), subject to the approval by
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “Annual
General Meeting”). The Dividend is expected to be paid on 21 August 2020,
to those shareholders whose names appeared on the register of members of
the Company on 5 August 2020.

Other reserves

Movements in other reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in Notes 20 and 34(b) to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Share capital and share options

Details of movements in share capital and share options of the Company
are set out in Notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 March 2020, the Company's reserves of approximately
HK$138,800,000 (subject to provisions of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended)) and retained earnings of approximately
HK$26,948,000 were available for distribution to the Company's
shareholders.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws (the
“Bye-Laws”) and the laws in Bermuda.

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's shares during the year.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$151,000.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Retirement schemes

Particulars of retirement schemes are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the Group's financial information for the last five financial
years is set out on pages 3 to 5 of this annual report.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon
Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael
Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman
Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben
Ms. Chow Lai Fung

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen
Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

According to the Bye-Laws, one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. Pursuant to Bye-Law 99, Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr. Yuen Yee
Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael will retire from the office of
Directors by rotation at the Annual General Meeting. Such Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.
All the other Directors will remain in office.

Brief biographical details of the Directors who will be proposed for re-
election at the Annual General Meeting are set out on pages 13 to 16.
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Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Independence of independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ and chief executive’'s interests in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations

As at 31 March 2020, the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
the following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Interests in the Company

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
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Beneficial Beneficiary controlled Beneficial percentage of
Name of Directors interests of a trust corporations interests Total shareholding
ESfs Bags ERER ERHEEER BHgs @ RARRESM
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny Bk 11,757,000 - 42,571,500 - 54,328,500 12.76%
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R 1,000 - 64,571,500% 410,000 64,982,500 15.26%
Chow Man Yan, Michael Bx 8,355,000 - 70,571,500%) - 78,926,500 18.53%
Yuen Chi King, Wyman BT - - - 4,020,000 4,020,000 0.94%
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben HOR 32,020,000 42,571,500 - - 74,591,500 17.52%
Chow Lai Fung [EEE 1,020,000 - - 3,000,000 4,020,000 0.94%

*

The percentage has been compiled based on the total number of Shares in issue
(i.e. 425,839,000 Shares) as at 31 March 2020.
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Directors’ and chief executive's interests in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (Continued)

Interests in the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. The 42,571,500 Shares are held by Loyal Fair Group Limited, a private limited
company wholly owned by Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd, which was in turn wholly
owned by Golden Hope Financial Limited. Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd was the
trustee of Yeung Unit Trust, which was then beneficially owned by the Yeung
Family Trust, a discretionary trust and the objects of which were the family
members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.
Golden Hope Financial Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung,
Johnny.

2. The 64,571,500 Shares are held by Sky Talent Enterprises Limited, a private
limited company beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.

3. The 70,571,500 Shares are held by Asia Supreme Limited, a private limited
company beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

4. Share options were granted to the Directors under the share option schemes
of the Company, details of which are separately disclosed under the paragraph
headed “Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures” below.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 31
March 2020.

Information on share option schemes

The Company adopted share option schemes under which it may grant
options to eligible participants (including executive Directors) to subscribe
for Shares. Details of the schemes are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions of the Company passed on 21 August
2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”).
At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 3 August 2012,
an ordinary resolution was passed for the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) and the termination of the Old Scheme.
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7%42,571,500A% A% 7 F Loyal Fair Group Limited#4 - Loyal
Fair Group Limited/ — & E5Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd%
EmAMNILABRAR] - MSilverfun Property (PTC) Ltdfd
Golden Hope Financial Limited® & %74 - Silverfun Property
(PTC) LtdAYeung Unit TrustZ {E5EA * Yeung Unit TrustFd
2275 E £ Yeung Family Trust (& A BISEH £ E
WREKE - BIEGDIREE)EZHAA © Golden Hope
Financial Limited B 15 5L E 2 EHA ©

2. 464,571,500/ %17 B3 Sky Talent Enterprises Limited$5748 -
Sky Talent Enterprises Limited/Z— B HEMMAELEZEE
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3. #%70,571,5000% %17 FHAsia Supreme Limited# 74 - Asia
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Information on share option schemes (Continued)

Subject to the exercise periods, all options (to the extent not already
exercised) granted prior to the termination of the Old Scheme shall continue
to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the Old Scheme. As at 31
March 2020, no options were granted under the New Scheme.

The principal terms of the New Scheme are as follows:

1. Purpose of the New Scheme

As incentive or rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to
the Group.

2. Eligible participants of the New Scheme

Any eligible employee (whether full-time or part-time, including any
executive Director), any non-executive Director, any shareholder, any
supplier and any customer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest,
and any other party having contribution to the development of the
Group.

3. Total number of Shares available for issue under the New
Scheme and percentage to the issued share capital as at
31 March 2020

41,013,900 Shares (approximately 9.63% of the total issued share
capital as at 31 March 2020).

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant under the New
Scheme

Not exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being in any 12-month period. Any further grant of options in
excess of such limit must be separately approved by the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting.

5. The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an option

A period (which may not expire later than 10 years from the date of
offer of that option) to be determined and notified by the Directors to
the grantee thereof.
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Information on share option schemes (Continued)

6.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors, there is no minimum
period required under the New Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls
must or may be made

A remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.0 on or before the date
of acceptance (which may not be later than 21 days from the date of
offer).

The basis of determining the exercise price
Being determined by the Directors and being not less than the highest

of:

a. the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

b.  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and

¢.  the nominal value of the Shares.

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The New Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 3 August 2012 (being the date of fulfilment of all
conditions on the adoption of the New Scheme).
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Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Movements in the share options granted to and held by the Directors under
the Old Scheme during the year were as follows:

Number of underlying Shares

EEBAROHESZ 2EF

FRREENS  BTRFTMERE I BRES
mT

RERGHE
Granted  Exercised Lapsed Subscription
Beginning during during during End of price per Date of Exercise period

Name of Directors of the Year the Year the Year the Year the Year Share grant (dd/imm/iyyyy)  Note
EEps £  FaRM  FATE  FRAX ER SRHORBE RHAH TEHE™(B/B/E)  WE

'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 (HKS)

Tk Th T Th T (A1)
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R4 410 - - - 410 1.1 281312012 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2022 1
Yuen Chi King, Wyman R 2,020 - - - 2,020 1.1 281312012 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2022 1

2,000 - - - 2,000 11 28312012 28/03/2014 - 27103/2022 2
Chow Lai Fung [FIER 1,000 - - - 1,000 11 2832012 2810312013 - 2710312022 1

2,000 - - - 2,000 1.1 28312012 28/0312014 - 2710312022 2
Total: ELE 7,430 - - - 7430
Notes: (ks

(1) The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from the date of grant.
(2)  The options were subject to a vesting period of two years from the date of grant.

(3)  Details of other movement of share options held by employees include employees
of the Company and of its subsidiaries working under employment contract with
the Company or its subsidiaries which are regarded as “continuous contracts”
for the purpose of the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or holding companies a party to any arrangements
to enable any of the Directors or the Company’s chief executive to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in Note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or holding companies was a party and in which any of the Directors or
the Company’s chief executive had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Substantial shareholders’ interests in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company

The following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares at 31 March 2020 amounting to 5% or more of the ordinary Shares in
issue which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and which have been recorded in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to the section 336 of the SFO.
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*Approximate
percentage of

Name of shareholder Number of Shares Capacity  Note interest

BRERER A RHBE 5144 ME *BAESA DL

Sky Talent Enterprises Limited 64,571,500 Beneficial owner 2 15.16%
EmBEAA

Asia Supreme Limited 70,571,500 Beneficial owner 3 16.57%
EnEBAA

Loyal Fair Group Limited 42,571,500 Beneficial owner 4 10.00%
BEHEAA

Golden Hope Financial Limited 42,571,500 Interest of controlled corporation 4 10.00%
P HEE 2w

Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd 42,571,500 Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 4 10.00%
EREA (WBEFEARRSIN)

Encyclia Investments (PTC) Limited 42,571,500 Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 5 10.00%
EREA (BEFEARRSIN)

Ms. Yan Yau Tai, Ellen 54,328,500 Interest of spouse 6 12.76%
BRBEBELZ L [P

Ms. Leung Woon Yee 64,982,500 Interest of spouse 7 15.26%
RpEL T fofd 2 s

Ms. Cai Liting 78,926,500 Interest of spouse 8 18.53%
BRIt Bz ER

Ms. Zong Xiao Cui 74,591,500 Interest of spouse 9 17.52%
RNBLZE Bz R

Mr. David Michael Webb 15,169,000 Beneficial owner 3.56%
David Michael Webb%t 4= EmfEA A

Mr. David Michael Webb 27,007,000 Interest of controlled corporation 10 6.34%
David Michael Webb 4t 4 REGVEE 2 R

Preferable Situation Assets Limited 27,007,000 Beneficial owner 10 6.34%

BEREAA

*

The percentage has been compiled based on the total number of Shares in issue
(i.e. 425,839,000 Shares) as at 31 March 2020.
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Substantial shareholders’ interests in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

10.

Interests in the Shares and the underlying Shares stated above represented long
positions.

Sky Talent Enterprises Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.

Asia Supreme Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

Loyal Fair Group Limited was wholly owned by Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd,
which was in turn wholly owned by Golden Hope Financial Limited. Silverfun
Property (PTC) Ltd was the trustee of Yeung Unit Trust, which was then
beneficially owned by the Yeung Family Trust, a discretionary trust and the
objects of which were the family members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny,
including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben. Golden Hope Financial Limited was wholly
owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny.

Encyclia Investments (PTC) Limited was the trustee of Yeung Family Trust, a
discretionary trust and the objects of which were the family members of Mr.
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.

Ms. Yan Yau Tai, Ellen is the wife of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny.

Ms. Leung Woon Yee is the wife of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.

Ms. Cai Liting is the wife of Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

Ms. Zong Xiao Cui is the wife of Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.

These Shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which was owned by Mr. David Michael Webb. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. David Michael Webb was deemed to be interested in all the Shares

held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited. Mr. David Michael Webb had an
aggregate interest in 42,176,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors, there was
no other person who had an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31 March 2020.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the year.
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Major customers and suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the five largest customers accounted
for approximately 85.1% of the Group's total revenue and the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 25.1% of the
Group's total purchases. The largest customer to the Group accounted for
approximately 27.9% of the Group's total revenue. None of the Directors,
their associates, or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company's share capital) of the
Company had an interest in these five largest customers and/or these five
largest suppliers.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s financial statements for
the financial year ended 31 March 2020 and is of the opinion that such
statements comply with the applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and the requirements of applicable laws, codes and regulations and
that adequate disclosure pursuant thereto have been made.

Public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment at the
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board,

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 18 June 2020
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Corporate governance practices

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance and endeavours in
following the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the “Corporate
Governance Code” (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has complied with
the CG Code save for the deviation from Code Provision A.2.1, which is
explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

The Board of Directors

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategies,
the setting of appropriate strategic policies, monitoring and controlling
the operation and financial performance of the Group, oversight of the
compliance with statutory and regulatory obligation.

The management of the Group, as delegated by the Board, is responsible for
execution of business strategies adopted, implementation of adequate system
and procedures of internal control and risk management, and oversight of
the day-to-day management of the Group's business.

To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise its powers in an informed
manner, management provides the Board with monthly management report
which contains year-to-date with summaries of financial performance and key
events of the Group. The monthly management report gives Board members
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group's performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board members to
discharge their duties.

The corporate governance duties are performed by the Board. Pursuant
to the terms of reference of the Board, the primary duties of the Board in
relation to corporate governance include introducing and proposing relevant
principles concerning corporate governance and reviewing and determining
the corporate governance policy, so as to enhance and to ensure the
corporate governance practices in the Group are in line with the relevant
requirements.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)

Board composition

The Board currently comprises six executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The Directors during the year under review and up
to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon (Joint Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael (Joint Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman

Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben

Ms. Chow Lai Fung

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen
Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

The brief biographical information of each Director is set out in the
"Biographical details of directors and senior management” section in this
annual report. Save as disclosed therein, there is no other relationship (whether
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships) among
the members of the Board.

Board diversity policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
in August 2013 and has posted it on the Company’'s website. The Board
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of the Company's performance. A truly diverse Board will
include and make good use of differences in the skills, industry experience,
educational background, knowledge, expertise, culture, age and gender and
other qualities of Directors. These differences will be taken into account in
determining the optimum composition of the Board. All appointments of
Directors will be based on merit while taking into account diversity. The
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and
the Board will review the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure
its continuous effectiveness.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, the Chairman of the Company, is also the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. According to the Code Provision A.2.1,
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. In view of that Mr. Yeung
has extensive experience in the electronics and acoustics industry and is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business development of
the Group, the Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and
chief executive officer in Mr. Yeung provides the Group with strong and
consistent leadership to improve the Company’s efficiency in decision-making
and execution, and effectively capture business opportunities. However, the
Board will periodically review the effectiveness of this arrangement and
consider separating the roles of chairman and chief executive officer when it
thinks appropriate.

The responsibilities of the chairman and the chief executive officer are as
follows:

The Chairman is responsible to determine the overall strategic planning
and business development of the Group after consultation with the Board,
provide leadership for the Board on corporate and strategic planning, ensure
proper proceedings of the Board and encourage all Directors to have active
contribution to the Board's affairs. With the support from the Board’s
members, he manages to implement the major strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer, with support of the executive Directors, is
to manage and operate the Group's day-to-day business, including the
implementation of major strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.

Independent non-executive Directors

Throughout the year, the independent non-executive Directors represent
one-third of the Board and at least one of whom possesses appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a specific
term of one year. The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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Re-election of members of the Board

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”). According to Bye-Law
99, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr. Yuen
Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting (the “Annual General Meeting”) and
being eligible, to offer themselves for re-election.

Board and committee attendance

Each year, regular matters reserved for the Board include overall strategies of
the Group, annual budgets, financial statements, dividend policy, corporate
governance function and other major corporate activities. For such purposes,
regular Board meetings are held four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in advance and
at least 14 days’ notice are given to all Directors so as to give them an
opportunity to attend. The meeting agenda and accompanying board papers
are circulated with sufficient time to allow the Directors to prepare before
meetings.

During the year, the Board held four meetings mainly to review and monitor
the financial performance of the Group; to discuss and approve the corporate
strategies of the Group; to consider and approve the annual budgets, the
financial reports and corporate governance related policies of the Group.
The Chairman of the Board also met with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of executive Directors.

According to the CG Code, independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general meetings. In the 2019 annual
general meeting, all Directors, including the Chairman of the Board, and
the external auditor of the Company attended the meeting and answered
shareholders’ questions.
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Board and committee attendance (Continued)

Details of the attendance of each of the Directors at board meetings,
committee meetings and annual general meeting held for the year ended 31
March 2020 are set out in the table below:

EEEeRTEECHERBR &)

REZE2020F3A31AEFE S ESHFEEETE
#ZECYRMBREAFASGZFBIHINTE

No. of meetings attended/held

HE T BITEERRE
2019 annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination general

Name of Director Board  Committee Committee  Committee meeting

2019F BRI
EEgE Exg BERXZEET® FMHEREE REZEET BFERE
Executive Directors HITES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny i 5/5 - 212 11 11
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R T 48 5/5 - - - 11
Chow Man Yan, Michael AXi= 5/5 - - - 11
Yuen Chi King, Wyman TR 5/5 - - - 171
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben 15 HE 5/5 - - - 11
Chow Lai Fung EER 5/5 - - - 171
Independent non-executive BIAFHITES

Directors

Chung Chi Ping, Roy EEF 5/5 33 212 11 11
Che Wai Hang, Allen BHEE 5/5 313 212 11 11
Lee Yiu Pun F R 5/5 33 212 17 7
Directors’ training B

To assist the Directors to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, all Directors had attended
relevant seminars and courses. The costs for such training are borne by the
Company.

Directors attended seminars/conferences/forums relevant to his/her
professional duties as directors or self-study of the publications issued by the
regulators, professional bodies and corporate lawyers during the year ended
31 March 2020.

Directors have participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and have provided a record of
training they received during the year ended 31 March 2020 to the Company.

Insurance

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance cover for the Directors in
respect of legal actions taken against the Directors. The Board reviews the
extent of the insurance cover every year.
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Board Committees

The Board has three committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. All the Board
committees are empowered by the Board under their own terms of reference
which are published on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's
website.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive Directors, as
follows:

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun (Chairman)
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

The Board has adopted written terms of reference that set forth the authority
and duties of the committee. The Audit Committee provides an important
link between the Board and the Company’s auditor in matters coming within
the scope of the group audit. Its duties are mainly to review the Company’s
financial reports, make recommendations on the appointment, removal
and remuneration of independent auditor, approve audit and audit-related
services, supervise the Company’s internal financial reporting procedures
and management policies, and review the Company's risk management and
internal control systems as well as the internal audit function.

During the year, the Audit Committee held three meetings and performed the
following duties:

—  reviewed the results announcements, financial statements, interim and
annual reports of the Company, with a recommendation to the Board
for approval;

—  reviewed the risk management policy, risk register and internal audit
year plan of the Group;

- reviewed the effectiveness of internal controls and risk mitigation
measures of top 10 risks prioritised in the risk register;

—  reviewed and made recommendations to Board for the approval of the
revised terms of reference of Audit Committee; and

- considered and made recommendation to the Board on the
re-appointment of the auditor of the Company.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen (Chairman)
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

The duties of the Remuneration Committee are clearly defined in its terms of
reference which have been prepared and adopted according to the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for the review and
determination of the remuneration policies and packages for Directors
and senior management of the Group. The remuneration packages of
the executive Directors are stipulated in their service agreements with
the Company. Such packages, including basic salaries, director’s fee
and discretionary bonus, are determined by reference to their duties,
responsibilities and experience, prevailing market conditions and their
expected time spent and contributions on the affairs of the Company. The
emoluments of the independent non-executive Directors are determined with
regard to their estimated time spent on the affairs of the Company.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings and
performed the following duties:

reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on the discretionary
bonus payable to executive Directors for the financial year ended 31
March 2019;

reviewed and approved the proposed remuneration packages of
executive Directors and senior management of the Group; reviewed
and make recommendations to the Board on the directors’ fees of
independent non-executive Directors; and

reviewed the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny (Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy

Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

According to the terms of reference, the Nomination Committee is
responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board
at least annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors taking into account the independence requirements
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; to make recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for the Directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive officer, including but not limited to, the
policy concerning the diversity of Board members, and the measurable
objectives for implementing such policy.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held a meeting and conducted
the following activities:

reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

—  reviewed and assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors;

—  reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and its measurable objectives;
- reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the re-election

of Directors for re-election by shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Nomination policy

The Board adopted the Nomination Policy in January 2019 and has posted
it on the Company’s website. Nomination Policy sets out the criteria and
procedures for identifying and nominating suitably qualified candidates for
appointment to the Board. The selection criteria specified in the Nomination
Policy include:

—  commitment of available time and ability to devote sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company;

- reputation for integrity;
— accomplishment and/or experience in the relevant industry(ies);

—  effectiveness in carrying out the responsibilities of the Board; and

diversity in all its aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive and
decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to nominate any
person, as it considers appropriate.

Nomination procedures

For appointing a Director, the secretary of the Nomination Committee shall
call a meeting of the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
will evaluate the candidate(s) based on the Nomination Policy and the
Board Diversity Policy to determine whether the candidate(s) is qualified for
directorship. Further details regarding the Nomination Policy and the Board
Diversity Policy, please refer to “Board Diversity Policy” and “Nomination
Policy” sections above respectively, The Nomination Committee makes
recommendations to the Board for consideration and approval. Any Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy would be subject to election by the
shareholders at the next general meeting.

For proposing Director(s) to stand for election at a general meeting, the
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board for
consideration and approval in accordance to the Nomination Policy and the
Board Diversity Policy.

A circular containing the requisite information on the proposed Director(s)
will be sent to the shareholders prior to the general meeting in accordance
to the Listing Rules.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of Directors to stand for election at any general meeting.
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Company secretary

Ms. Chow Lai Fung has resigned as a company secretary of the Company
and Mr. Yuen Chi King Wyman has been appointed to replace Ms. Chow as
company secretary of the Company with effect from 1 April 2020.

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board meeting
process, as well as communication among Board members, with shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and management. During the year, Ms.
Chow has confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

Directors and senior management’s remuneration

The remuneration of senior management of the Company for the year under
review is set out below:
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HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T 22,000,000 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7T 2 3,000,000/%8 7T 2

Further particulars regarding the five highest paid employees and directors
remuneration are set out in Notes 28 and 29 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Auditor's remuneration

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company,
provided both audit and non-audit services to the Company for a total
remuneration of approximately HK$2,256,000. The relevant fee paid for
audit services amounted to approximately HK$1,595,000. The balance of the
remuneration related to the non-audit services which mainly included the
review of interim results, amounting to approximately HK$220,000; taxation
services, amounting to approximately HK$277,000; and other non-audit
services, amounting to approximately HK$164,000.

Disclosure obligations regarding inside information

In light of the disclosure obligations under the SFO with effect from 1
January 2013, the Board has established the following processes and
procedures across all relevant division(s) and department(s) of the Group for
complying with the disclosure obligations regarding “Inside Information”:

(i)  the processes for identifying, assessing and escalating potential inside
information to the Board; and

(ii)  the responsibilities of officers in preserving the confidentiality of inside
information, escalating upwards any such potential information and
cascading down the message and responsibilities to relevant staff.
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Securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors and senior management of the Group on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (“Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all Directors
and senior management of the Group, all Directors and senior management
of the Group have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by Directors and senior management throughout the year ended 31 March
2020.

The Board has also establish procedures for relevant employees, including
certain employees of the Company, certain Directors or employees of its
subsidiaries who are considered to be likely to possess inside information in
relation to the Company or its securities, in respect of their dealings in the
Company’s securities.

Risk management and internal control

The Board is responsible for overseeing the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Company, to
identify and manage the risks faced by the Group, as well as to ensure the
shareholders’ interests and the Company’s assets are properly safeguarded.
The design of risk management and internal control systems is to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failing to achieve business objectives, and
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

In view of the requirement of the Listing Rules in relation to the code
provisions on risk management which took effect in 2016, the Company
adopted a risk management policy in March 2016, which was subsequently
revised in 2017. The Board has delegated the Audit Committee with authority
and responsibility to oversee the overall management of risks and report
the results to the Board as set out in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee. The risk management policy is reviewed by the Audit Committee
from time to time.

The Board conducts continuous review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems through the Audit Committee and
internal audit team of the Company. The Company compiles a risk register
according to the risk assessment conducted at the enterprise level, monitors
it on an on-going basis by taking into account emerging issues.
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Risk management and internal control (Continued)
The internal control systems and risk management were reviewed during the
year included:

—  the risk management policy.

- the scope of the risk management and internal control systems covering
strategic, operational, financial and compliance controls.

—  the risk management process, including risk assessment process, risk
prioritisation, and the design of internal controls and risk mitigation
measures of the risks prioritised in the risk register.

- mid-year review on the effectiveness of internal controls and risk
mitigation measures of top 10 risks prioritised in the risk register.

the annual internal audit plan and the regular internal audit updates.

The internal audit team plays an important role to ensure the risk
management and internal control systems are operating effectively. It
independently reviews compliance of the Group's policy and workflows,
regulatory requirements, risk management and internal controls and evaluate
their adequacy and effectiveness. The internal audit plan is risk-and-control
based that covers the Group's significant operations over a cycle and
recurring basis. The annual audit plan is reviewed and endorsed by the Audit
Committee.

The Board also considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function. There were no significant areas of concern identified during the
year.

The procedures and internal controls for handling and disseminating of inside
information are governed by the Model Code. The policy and procedures
of the Company are explained in the sections of “Disclosure obligations
regarding inside information” and “Securities transactions” of this Corporate
Governance Report.

In light of the above reviews and policies, the Board confirms that the
Group’s risk management and internal controls systems are effective and
adequate.

Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for financial
statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of financial
statements of the Group.

The responsibilities of the independent auditor of the Company are set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report to the shareholders of the Company on
pages 73 to 79 of this annual report.
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Shareholders’ right

1. Procedures for convening special general meeting on
requisition

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Shareholders have the right to requisition the Company to
convene a special general meeting in the manner prescribed by
and set out in the Bye-Laws and the Companies Act.

Bye-Law 62 provides “The Board may, whenever it thinks
fit, convene a special general meeting, and special general
meetings shall also be convened on requisition, as provided by
the Companies Act, and, in default, may be convened by the
requisitionists.” Pursuant to section 74 of the Companies Act,
Shareholders (“General Meeting Requisitionists”) holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
may requisition the Directors to forthwith proceed duly to convene
a special general meeting by depositing a written requisition
(“General Meeting Requisition”) at the registered office of the
Company.

The General Meeting Requisition must state the purpose of
the meeting (including the resolutions to be considered at
the meeting), and must be signed by the General Meeting
Requisitionists; the General Meeting Requisition may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
General Meeting Requisitionists.

The General Meeting Requisition shall be deposited at the
registered office and preferably, copied to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company and marked for the
attention of the Board or the company secretary of the Company
at their respective address below:

Registered office of the Company

Victoria Place, 5th Floor

31 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary

Head office and principal place of business of the Company
16th Floor, Tower 1

Grand Central Plaza

138 Shatin Rural Committee Road

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary
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Shareholders’ right (Continued)

1. Procedures for convening special general meeting on
requisition (Continued)

1.5

If the Directors fails to proceed to duly convene such meeting
within 21 days from the date of the deposit of General Meeting
Requisition as set out in the paragraph 1.2 above, the General
Meeting Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than
one half of their total voting rights, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of the deposit of
the General Meeting Requisition. A meeting so convened by the
General Meeting Requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to
be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the General Meeting
Requisitionists by reason of the failure of the Board to duly
convene a meeting shall be repaid to the General Meeting
Requisitionists by the Company.

2. Procedures for raising enquiries

2.1

2.2

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
details of which are as follows:

Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Address: 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2529 6087

Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect of the
Company at the designated contacts of Investor Relations of the
Company as below:

Address: 16th Floor, Tower 1, Grand Central Plaza
138 Shatin Rural Committee Road, Shatin
New Territories, Hong Kong

Email: ir@fujikon.com

Tel: (852) 2605 5008

Fax: (852) 2694 1338
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Shareholders’ right (Continued)

2.

Procedures for raising enquiries (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Shareholders are encouraged to make enquires via the online
enquiry form available on the Company’s website at www.fujikon.
com.

Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together with
their detailed contact information for the prompt response from
the Company if it deems appropriate.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting

3.1

3.2

Section 79 of the Companies Act provides that, at the expense of
the Resolution Requisitionists (as defined in paragraph 3.2 below)
unless the Company otherwise resolves, it shall be the duty of
the Company on the requisition in writing by the Resolution
Requisitionists:

(a) to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting;

to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice of
any general meeting sent to them any statement of not
more than one thousand words with respect to the matter
referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at that meeting.

"Resolution Requisitionists” means Shareholders making a
requisition under paragraph 3.1 above and shall constitute either:
(@) any number of Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the
meeting to which the requisition relates; or

not less than one hundred Shareholders.
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Shareholders’ right (Continued)

3. Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting (Continued)

3.3

3.4

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and any
such statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders entitled to
have notice of the meeting sent to them by serving a copy of the
resolution or statement on each such Shareholder in any manner
permitted for service of notice of the meeting, and notice of any
such resolution shall be given to any other Shareholder by giving
notice of the general effect of the resolution in any manner
permitted for giving him notice of meeting of the Company,
provided that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of
the resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the same
manner and, so far as practicable, at the same time as notice of
the meeting and, where it is not practicable for it to be served
or given at that time, it shall be served or given as soon as
practicable thereafter.

Section 80 of the Companies Act sets out the conditions to be
met before the Company is bound to give any notice of resolution
or to circulate any statement. Pursuant to section 80 of the
Companies Act, the Company shall not be bound to give notice
of any resolution or to circulate any statement as mentioned in
paragraph 3.1 above unless:—

(@) a copy of the requisition signed by the Resolution
Requisitionists, or two or more copies which between them
contain the signatures of all the Resolution Requisitionists,
is deposited at the registered office of the Company:—

(i) in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting;
and

(ii) in the case of any other requisition, not less than one
week before the meeting; and

(b) there is deposited or tendered with the requisition a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expense in
giving effect to the procedures in paragraph 3.1 above
(i.e. the giving of notice of resolution and/or circulation of
statement).

Provided that if, after a copy of the requisition requiring notice
of a resolution has been deposited at the registered office of
the Company, an annual general meeting is called for a date six
weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, the copy though
not deposited within the above-mentioned time shall be deemed
to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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Shareholders’ right (Continued)

4. Procedures for propose a person for election as a Director

Pursuant to Bye-law 103, if a shareholder wishes to nominate a person
to stand for election as a Director at any general meeting appointed for
such election shall follow the procedures as prescribed in Bye-law 103.
Details of the procedures for nomination of Directors for election are
available on the website of the Company.

The relevant procedures are set out in the document titled “Shareholders’
rights” and "Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as
a director” which are available on the websites of the Company.

Constitutional documents

There was no change in the Company's constitutional documents during the
year.

Relations with shareholders

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.
The Company also holds regular meetings with institutional shareholders.

To ensure effective communication with the Shareholders, the Company
has adopted a formal shareholder communication policy to ensure that the
Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced
and understandable information about the Company (including its financial
performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments, governance
and risk profile), in order to enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights
in an informed manner, and to allow the Shareholders and the investment
community to engage actively with the Company.

The Company maintain a corporate website (www.fujikon.com) to keep its
Shareholders and the investing public posted of the Company’s business
developments and operations, list of Directors and their roles and functions,
constitutional documents, terms of reference of the Board and its committees,
procedures of nomination of directors for election, shareholders’ rights and
communication policy, corporate governance practices, announcements,
circulars and reports released to the Stock Exchange and other information
are posted. Information on the Company’s website will be updated from time
to time.

The Company’s annual general meeting is one of the important platforms
to communication with the Shareholders. The Annual General Meeting
will be held at 16th Floor, Tower 1, Grand Central Plaza, 138 Shatin Rural
Committee Road, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong on 30 July 2020. The
full text of the resolutions and explanatory notes in respect of the meeting
are contained in the Notice of Annual General Meeting. All Shareholders
are invited to attend the Annual General Meeting and participate in
communicating with the Company.
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Dividend policy

The Board has approved and adopted the dividend policy in 2019 which is
published on the Company's website. The dividend policy aims to ensure
a stable return to the shareholders and to use the Group's capital more
effectively with this dividend policy. In proposing any dividend payout, the
Board shall take into account the following factors:

(@) the requirements of the Company under applicable laws and
regulations;

(b) the amount of retained profits and distributable reserves of the
Company and its subsidiaries;

(c) any financial covenants and other restrictions bound to the Company;

(d) the financial performance expansion plans, working capital
requirements, and anticipated cash needs of the Company and its
subsidiaries;

(e) cash dividends from the subsidiaries to the Company; and
(f)  other factors which the Board may deem appropriate.

The form and frequency of dividend declaration and payment shall be at the
sole and absolute discretion of the Board and final dividend shall be subject
to the shareholders’ approval at annual general meeting.

Hong Kong Market Misconduct Tribunal ("MMT")
proceedings

Reference is made to the interim report for the six months ended 30
September 2019.

As at the date of this report, the professional fees and other costs and
expenses incurred by the Company in relation to the MMT proceedings and
amounts to be covered by the insurance company are yet to be ascertained.
The Company will update the shareholders and potential investors in due
course once the amount is ascertained.

Hong Kong, 18 June 2020
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Our vision

Fujikon is principally engaged in the design, manufacturing, marketing
and trading of electro-acoustic products, accessories and other
electronic products. The Group has been focusing on technology
innovation to solidify its position in the electro-acoustic market, in
an effort to become our customers’ preferred strategic partner in
the electro-acoustic and electronic industries. We also place great
emphasis on the sustainable development of the Group while we strive
to expand our business. We have committed to reducing impacts on
the environment from our business operations, safeguarding employee
rights and interests and making contributions to the society.

We incorporate the concept of sustainable development into
the Group's management policy. The Board has formulated the
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") strategy and regularly
assessed relevant risks, so as to ensure the Group has adopted and
maintained effective risk management and internal control measures
at the ESG level. We will continue to firmly adhere to the concept of
sustainability development. We strive to provide customers with high
value-added and highly differentiated products with advanced and
innovative technologies, with an aim to become long-term partner for
the world leading clients and create greater value for the stakeholders.

About this section

The Group is committed to achieving sustainable development by
engaging environmental protection and social development as an
integral part of our business development. This section presents
the environmental and social performance of the Group. This report
is prepared in accordance with the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) to conform
with the relevant disclosure requirements for listed companies issued
by the Stock Exchange. This report has been approved by the Board for
issue.

Unless otherwise stated, this section highlights the environmental
performance of Charter Media (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. under the Group
which is located in Dongguan, China (hereinafter referred to as the
“Headsets and Headphones Plant”), as well as the other social and
governance performance of its Hong Kong office and the plants in
China. This report covers the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 March
2020.
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4.

Environmental, social and governance structure

In order to effectively manage the ESG-related risks, we have
established the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee (the
“ESG Committee”) which is in charge of formulating the overall ESG
strategies and objectives, regularly monitoring the key performance
indicators and compliance with laws and regulations, and provides
reports on the overall ESG performance to the Board for approval.
An Environmental, Social and Governance Working Group has been
established under the ESG Committee, which is responsible for assisting
the ESG Committee in coordinating the implementation and execution
of the relevant ESG measures by all departments, collecting relevant
key performance indicator data and carrying out the report compilation.

3.
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Stakeholder engagement and material issues
4.1 Stakeholder engagement

The Group always attaches great importance to the opinions
of the stakeholders. The key stakeholders in our business
include customers, employees, suppliers, investors, government
authorities, communities and industry associations. We believe
that good communication with the stakeholders provides
meaningful reference which is helpful for the Group in formulating
its long-term goals to promote sustainable development.

£ 20192020 47 =+3

BRI - e RER T

4. NEHETHN2EREEMRE

4.1 FREESSHE

SE—E+H2ERHBETHER o HiM
¥BPHEZANEEEHRERT BT -
HRER - WAL BUTHE - ?ilE&%ﬁiﬁ
B RMBEEFNZMHEINRITER -
tHE2E - TT%%EJJE@W"H*Z?*)E%WEE
=ERF

RAERRA



I

_——

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -HERERBRE

4. Stakeholder engagement and material issues
(Continued)

4.2 Materiality analysis

Employment and labour practices

To ensure that this report covers material ESG issues in the
Group's core business and presents appropriate response
to concerns of the stakeholders, we gather the views of
stakeholders of our headsets and headphones business mainly
through conducting questionnaires to collect feedbacks from our
customers, employees and suppliers, which require the interviewed
stakeholders to prioritise the environmental and social issues
with a rating of 0 (least important) to 5 (most important). The
opinions of the stakeholders will help us to identify and prioritise
the relative material ESG-related issues, which will enable us
to identify the risks associated with our main businesses and to
develop policies and measures to cope with the challenges.

The table below summarises the material ESG issues identified
through the above communication activity:

Operation practices
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5.

Environmental protection

5.1 Environmental management system

We are dedicated in promoting emission reduction and
environmental protection in order to achieve sustainable
development. In conducting our business, we strive to mitigate
the damages and risks to the environment caused by day-
to-day operations, and implement energy conservation and
emission reduction in the production process of the headsets and
headphones business, while efforts have been made to enhance
the awareness of employees and clients regarding environmental
protection as well as resource and energy conservation. As
always, our established environmental management system
continued to ensure compliance with the national environmental
protection regulations and our continuous success in emission
reduction.

The Headsets and Headphones Plant of the Group has obtained
the 15014001 Environmental Management System ("1S014001")
Certification and the IECQ QC080000 HSPM Hazardous Substances
Process Management System Certification, which demonstrates
that the Group’s performance in environmental protection lives up
to the international standards.
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5.

Environmental protection (Continued)

5.2 Emissions and wastes

The Group is primarily engaged in the production of headsets and
headphones. In compliance with the environmental protection
laws and regulations in China, and following the principle of up-
to-standard emission and mitigating impacts of pollutants on
the environment and the surrounding areas, we are dedicated
to reducing discharge of pollutants and wastes generated from
business operations by the means of green purchasing and
cleaner production. In compliance with the requirements of the
1S014001, the Headsets and Headphones Plant has established
a comprehensive management system, formulated guidelines on
reducing all kinds of emissions and actively introduced emission
abatement technology and equipments. During the year, the
Headsets and Headphones Plant has successfully renewed the
pollutant discharge license issued by Dongguan Environmental
Protection Bureau (3 52T 4 A2 IR 3% /3). In addition, we also
engaged an independent environmental inspection company
to examine the waste gas and waste water discharged by the
Headsets and Headphones Plant, with the result showing that the
emissions satisfied the national and local emission standards.

lﬂ“
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5.

Environmental protection (Continued)

5.2 Emissions and wastes (Continued)

Waste gas

The waste gas emissions from the production process of the
headsets and headphones mainly include volatile organic
compounds (“VOCs”) from painting operation, tin and its
compounds from the soldering process of the assembling
operation, non-methane hydrocarbons and particles from the
molding and assembling process and exhaust gas of power
generators.

To further reduce emission, the Headsets and Headphones Plant
installed organic waste gas treatment equipment which can purify
the waste gas produced from painting, pad printing, molding
and assembling process through UV photolysis and active carbon
adsorption device, and these equipment have been put into full
operation during the year. In addition, renovation was carried
out on the waste gas pipeline of the workshops during the year,
effectively reducing the concentration of waste gas emission that
contains tin and its compounds. The overall average concentration
of waste gas emission that contains tin and its compounds
was as low as 0.0009 mg/m? during the year, among which the
concentration of waste gas emission that contains tin and its
compounds mainly originated from the surface mount technology
machines (“SMT machines”) of the electronic assembly workshop
was reduced by 17% as compared to that of last year. Particles,
sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxide and other waste gas emissions are
mainly produced from exhaust gas of power generators, which
are collected and subject to water sprinkling process treatment
for emission at a high altitude. As the Group consumed its diesel
inventory for power generation during the year, the concentration
of exhaust gas of power generators for the year was higher than
that of last year.

£4§ 20192020 51

5.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE-HERERRS

RERE (#)
5.2 B R EEEY (&)

B
EREEBRETHHRNERIERREE
HEREEMBEREBRM([ERIERR
W) KEIEENES THFELENH LA
o EBRARKETFELRNIETRR
KRR ARBEEBRER ©

RE— DR BREBRECD BN T B
FE @3B B iR e 0 R UV B N 0E I ik T BT
REFERER BN FBRERETR
BENER  YERAFE2EEAER - [
B AT ERAERIENEEBETT T X
e ABRETHEECE YRR
E - ERHLEECEMFEEIRERER
20.0009= 5,3 5K 0 HP EBHRCR
BEFEREMATAE(A#]) - 25
MEEDERER EFRET17% - 88
ny - —&EeE AR EREIERME
ZRABEREREE  BERERIE
EREKEMRTERIBEDS TR - AFH
RTEHETRRE  MAFEHESREINE
BREREF S °

EXTSEXERERAA



P
I

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -HERERBRE

5. Environmental protection (Continued)

5.2 Emissions and wastes (Continued)

Waste gas (Continued)

The independent environmental inspection company has examined
the waste gas originated from the production of the Headsets and
Headphones Plant, with the result showing that the emissions
were lower than the national and local emission standard limits.

5. RERE#®)
5.2 BE R EEEY (&)

BER (&)

BIURBERARBCRBERERHRENLE
ERMEENER  RABRGERER R

I PR IZERE -

Emission source Waste gas emissions Unit
Soldering process of SMT  Tin and its compounds' 0.0015 0.0018 mg/m?
machines
B RRB T BRE(LAN 23/ Ik
Exhaust gas of power Particles 22.72 ND? mg/m?
generators
HEHRER FERLY) 2R/ YK
Sulfur dioxide 3.00 ND? mg/m?3
—&(bhr 25,/ MK
Nitrogen oxide 130.50 ND? mg/m?3
k(e VAT
Painting, pad printing Benzene 0.0315 ND? mg/m?
process
Eh -~ BEILfr FiS 2R,/ YK
Toluene 0.1049 0.1583 mg/m?3
R 25,/ MK
Xylene 0.0529 0.0280 mg/m?
ZHRX 25,/ K
Total VOCs? 1.8346 NA3 mg/m?3
miBE LAY 25,/ MK
Assembling and molding Non-methane 3.3273 NA3 mg/m?3
process hydrocarbons?
KR ST E TR FEFR e 4B 257/ K
Assembling process Particles? 0.3659 NA3 mg/m?3
KL FERIY 2R/ K

i RSB RERA T EHRREE FRAEE
RO BE F 14

Bt NDA[ AR AR TR

R ANF IR T R HT S 2RI EITEE 0 NA
AR R

Note' Testing data was derived from the SMT machines of the electronic
assembly workshop which are the major emission source

Note? ND denotes “not detected”, i.e. no relevant emission is detected

Note> New testing items required by local governments during the year,
and NA means no relevant emission has been detected
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5. Environmental pig@Yection (Continued)

5.2 Emissions and wastes (Continued)

Organic exhaust purification system which is used to filter waste
gas produced by the molding and painting workshops.

Waste water

The industrial waste water generated by the Headsets and
Headphones Plant is mainly discharged from painting operation. In
order to reduce industrial waste water discharge from the source,
the Headsets and Headphones Plant has introduced a circulating
water treatment system to improve the waste water filtration
process. In addition, we have formulated relevant procedures to
ensure that industrial waste water is separately collected and
pretreated by a dedicated sedimentation basin before transferring
it to the institutions recognised by the environmental protection
authority for recycling and treatment. Moreover, we conduct
regular examinations on industrial waste water from the Headsets
and Headphones Plant and domestic waste water from the
dormitory buildings to ensure all water quality indicators meet
the national emission standards.

The increase in waste water generation volume and intensity
during the year was mainly due to the increase in production
processes to complement an increasingly complicated product
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RERE(#)
5.2 F R BERY (&)

BHERF RS B
FRELREER -

B T 28 e T ik =B

S5k
B ESREEEMN TE/SKEERGER
EZE - BTHRSERME I ZE5/KEL - B
EBBEDSIABRKES  HE5KAE
B - B BMOESEEERER BRI
%E* SEUNEE - BEPIRTUR T TR
& 1% X AIRREBPI R AT M #4 18 B R
IE SN FPE SR E R ESRE YT
FMITESKERBESHEENAEESK - AR
FIHEKEEBEFTEBRREIURE -

REFRELBERTEEN  TBIHR
EmEBEBEM  FETFIES -

structure.
Industrial waste water Unit
T#55K By
Generation of industrial waste water* Ton
TE5KEE! T4

Intensity

--

Generation or discharge of industrial waste
water/thousand units produced

TRSKELESIRE BTEENE

Note* Industrial waste water represents waste water from painting operation
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5. Environmental protection (Continued) 5. RERE®)
5.2 Emissions and wastes (Continued) 5.2 AR EEEY (#)
Greenhouse gas BERE
We have been taking proactive measures to effectively B —ERBRENEREER D RERE
reduce greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions and the total GHG (TREREDNER FEAERENE

emissions decreased by approximately 20% for the year. With
the technology advancement and higher standard of customer
requirement, our products have seen an increasingly complicated
production process with decrease in output, thus increasing the
overall carbon dioxide ("C0:") emission intensity. Nevertheless,
we will continue to make improvement to alleviate impacts of our
business on the environment.

BRI #020% - BEREREE TR
B 3 BET R A BT B iR Y B A
L mE IR R RE R
BT A AN - BB AR ) 2
BUHBRNY S

i

Greenhouse gas Unit
BERE By
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1)° 336.32 554.09 tCO2e
AEREEE N (EE)S M — SALFRHERE =
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2)° 8,559.41 10,571.83 tCO2e
BT R R P (EE2)s WE— | LB E =
Total GHG emissions 8,895.73 11,125.92 tCO2e
o SR A HE R AT Wi — &Lk HE N E =
Emission of CO2/thousand units produced 2.48 2.14  Ton/thousand units produced

“E(ERERE BT EENE

Note® Direct GHG emissions are attributable to petroleum and diesel
consumed by commercial vehicles, gas consumed by canteens and
refrigerants for air-conditioning systems.

Note® Indirect GHG emissions are attributable to electricity bought from
external parties.

Wastes

We have waste treatment procedures in place. In terms of
hazardous wastes, we safely transfer the hazardous substances
like waste paint residue and used oil in accordance with the
“Management Regulation on Hazardous Wastes Manifests”, and
hand them over to the collection service providers approved
by the environmental protection authority for recycling and
treatment. For non-hazardous wastes, recyclable and non-
recyclable wastes are sorted out and stored separately as before.
Most of the non-hazardous wastes are to be recycled, so as to
reduce negative impacts on the environment.
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5.

Environmental protection (Continued)

5.2

5.3

Emissions and wastes (Continued)

Wastes (Continued)

During the year, the generation of both hazardous wastes and
non-hazardous wastes decreased, and the increase in intensity
was mainly due to the renovation work at the production
buildings and staff living area. The plant has implemented proper
treatment of the hazardous and non-hazardous wastes according
to the procedures set by the Company. The major discharge of
industrial wastes by the Headsets and Headphones Plant are
shown below:
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RERE (#)

5.2

R BERY ()

BERY (&)

REENAEENNEETRRELEDER
Lo mEENTEEEERERBTAER
BHEBH TE BECRRARGENRE
FFotaEREREREEEREY - TRIH
HBEBHMENSBEIE T EBEEYNTN

= .
2 -

WEHEH Unit
BEZEY B
Hazardous wastes’ Ton
BERERY 18
Non-hazardous wastes® 707 864 Ton
R A
Hazardous wastes discharged/thousand units 0.008 0.007 Ton/thousand units produced
produced
BEEEHSNE BTEENY W, BT EEHR
Non-hazardous wastes discharged/thousand 0.197 0.166  Ton/thousand units produced
units produced
BEENEINRE BTEERR WE, BT EEHR

Note’ Hazardous wastes include used oil barrels, oil wiping gloves, waste
light tubes, used ink slag, waste paint residue and used oil, etc.
Note® Non-hazardous wastes include used cardboard boxes, used plastic

tips (plastics) and other non-hazardous wastes, etc.

Energy Conservation

The Group proactively works in line with national environmental
policies. We also have taken a series of measures in the Headsets
and Headphones Plant to reduce energy consumption, including
using air-conditioners and lightings as less often as possible,
reducing the idle time of production machines and adopting high-
efficiency production machinery, etc. To further reduce electricity
consumption, the Headsets and Headphones Plant replaced the
outdated energy-consuming air-conditioners of its production
workshops with new energy-saving air-conditioners. In addition,
we also made improvement to and extended the use of energy-
saving lightening system, such as adjusting the lightening height
over the operation line of each production workshop, replacing
all obsolete light tubes at the plant areas and living quarters and
applying motion sensor lights and light-activated lights at the
lavatories and corridors outside the production workshops.
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5.

Environmental protection (continued) 5. RERR#)

5.3 Energy Conservation (Continued) 5.3 HigE(#&)
During the past years, the plant has kept certain inventory of BEEBF  BEERTFLEBUERERS -
diesel for backup power generation. However, given the more BREEMHTHERTFET  BERAEAR
stable local power supply as compared with previous years, BT BITEELUR D BERFEREK
the plant increased self power generation during the year to ¥ FEARFELHBAEEMEM - B0 A
minimise its diesel inventory, resulting in an increase in diesel JEEESS  EEMEIHBMY  F4AF
consumption during the year. Moreover, we recorded decrease REXBKEHERD - BEMAKZEIE
in electricity and water consumption during the year due to the }Jﬂﬁj$¢f§§uu,uﬁfﬂlfﬁﬁ%% 1P
reduction in production output and staff headcount based on S EIRERREE FRAKD F D HH I8
production needs. The increase in the intensity of electricity and TR E - f;@i’%ﬁ%ﬁ'ﬂﬂ?ﬁgﬁ@ o

water consumption was also affected by the product portfolio
and production process during the year. We will continue to
promote environmental protection and energy conservation, so as
to mitigate and reduce negative impacts on the environment and
facilitate the sustainable development of the Group.

Use of resources Unit
ER £ 2020 H

Use of energy
Fha/ﬁﬁ*iﬁﬁ

Electricity 13,577,740 16,770,040
HEE :Fl\'_LHn*
Liquified petroleum gas 25,845 30,710 Kilogram
Bl AMRE
7K
Water 183,164 197,548
FH7J<E
--_
HE
Electricity consumption/thousand units 3,787 3,230 kWh/thousand units
produced produced
REEERAE BTEEHH FTRE GFEENEK
Water consumption/thousand units produced 51.1 38.1  mPthousand units produced
RKERE STEEMHH MFKRBTEEHE
Water used by the Headsets and Headphones Plant is sourced EREBHENORKENE EH - WELHIER
locally and there is no water sourcing issue. ERKE IR o
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6.

Environmental protection (Continued)

5.4 Treasure our environment and resources

Over the years, we actively enhanced environmental benefits in
the production process, achieving significant outcomes. Although
the packaging design and materials selection for our headsets
and headphones business is prescribed by the customers, the
packaging materials and other resulting by-products are sorted
out for recycling and reuse as much as possible, so as to reduce
the consumption of social resources.

Employee caring

6.1 Diversified and equitable workplace

Employees are the important assets of the Group, and are also an
important factor contributing to our success. Therefore, we make
great efforts to attract and retain talents by offering a sound
remuneration mechanism, establishing an equal, respectful and
non-discriminate recruitment policy and creating a diversified and
equitable workplace.

In addition, in order to facilitate a more harmonious working
atmosphere and enhance the staff's sense of belonging, we have
also set up a number of communication platforms and organised
a variety of employee activities from time to time, including
monthly birthday parties, Christmas party, Annual Party and
all kinds of sports events, etc., so as to achieve a work-and-
life balance for the staff, and also help to build mutual trust
between the management and employees, inspiring the staff to
make contributions to the Group's success, creating a pleasant
working environment and promoting the sustainable and stable
development of the Company.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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6. Employee caring (continued) 6. BIEET (#)
6.1 Diversified and equitable workplace (Continued) 6.1 ZXFPEMNIERE(E)
The Group has received the “Happy Company” award from SEE2013FREBEHEBREEHES
the Promoting Happiness Index Foundation and Hong Kong LBEBEENRERBXRIFALOLIIER I
Productivity Council since 2013 and was accredited the “Happy IH - WHEMRIMFEOTIEM+]ZER BR&E
Company 5 Years Plus” logo, demonstrating the efforts and B 7T & S5O R TYERIB R AR AR ©

achievements made by the Group in building a happy workplace.

Jﬂ“

BITEHEER
Highlights of employee activities
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6.

Employee caring (Continued)
6.1 Diversified and equitable workplace (Continued)

In respect of recruitment and promotion, we stick to the principle
of selecting the right people for the right jobs and ensure a
fair and equitable process without any discrimination. As of 31
March 2020, the Group had a total of 3,346 (2019: 4,567) full-
time employees and 302 (2019: 460) contract labour. Below
is a breakdown of our workforce by age, gender, position and

education:
92
193
\ 1,286
ee
By age
RER
1,775 /
2.89 | Below 20 53.0% 35-49
’ 208 AT ’ 35-49
384% 20-34 58% 50 or above
20-34 50883 Ak
101
2,362 /
d 883
—
S
By position

30% Managers or above 706% General staff
BB b —RIES

264 % SL{peNisory staff
BEE
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6. BEIZEETI (®)
6.1 ZRTENITHEREE)

EEBRATE B —EFRSOAERA
i UMAFRERTEREBARE - HZE
20206F3A31H - EEEAEZB E TH3,346
#(2019: 4,567 ) ;2857513024 (2019: 460
H) o EBETIRFHR - 45 BAKBERE

BlomT
2,007
1,339
By gender
BRI
60 0% Female
’ x
Male
40.0% | 5
136
213 ‘ 118
_— /7
By education
REERE
N 2,879
0, Primary school 0, College
3.5% | i 6.4% | Sou
860% Middle school 41 % University or above
hEg REFHHUE

£35 201920200 D9 ErEEEZRERAT
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6.

Employee caring (Continued)

6.1 Diversified and equitable workplace (Continued)

On employee recruitment and promotion, by upholding the anti-
discrimination policy, we treat every employee fairly regardless
their race, color, age, religion, nationality or disability, and
have adopted a “zero tolerance” policy towards any form of
discrimination, violence or harassment. We strictly comply
with the national labour laws, regulations and rules, thus
minors under the age of 16 will not be employed. The human
resources department also always carefully verifies the identity
information of each applicant during the recruitment process,
and the Headsets and Headphones Plant introduced the face
recognition system to verify whether the information and
supporting certificate provided are consistent with the applicant.
Furthermore, organisations with child labour or forced labour will
be rejected from our business dealings or cooperation.

In respect of retaining talents, the Group has established a
competitive remuneration and benefit system based on various
factors such as market pay trend, position and skill requirements.
Moreover, the Group has also established different performance
indicators according to job description of different positions, and
inspects work performance of the employees through regular
appraisal, so as to review and determine the remuneration and
promotion arrangement of such employees.

In addition, we understand the importance of mutual trust
between the Company and its employees, and therefore attach
great emphasis to communication with employees and encourage
them to give feedback and opinions through various channels,
such as directly reporting to their superiors, giving suggestions
and making enquiries through the corporate Wechat, hotlines
and mailboxes set up in the workplace. For employees leaving
the Company, we also arrange exit interview with them to
understand the reasons for their resignation as we value equally
their suggestions, so as to improve the deficiency in the Group's
existing employee management system and policies, with an aim
to create a better working environment for the employees. During
the reporting period, the average turnover rate of the Group was
8.3% (2019: 8.1%).
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Employee caring (Continued)

6.2 Health and safety

It is a vital mission for the Company to safeguard the health and
safety of the Group's employees. Therefore, in accordance with
the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong and
the national occupational-health standards and requirements of
China, we have been committed to the formulation of relevant
safety regulations and rules, in an effort to create for the
employees a working environment that is not only secure, but
also appropriate, including offering orientation trainings for
new employees so that they have safety knowledge related to
their posts to avoid any occupational injury accidents; providing
health and safety trainings regularly which enables employees
to enrich relevant occupational safety and health knowledge;
arranging examination of the display screens from time to time
and organizing various health-related seminars; and announcing
relevant information of occupational safety and health on notice
boards. Moreover, every year we organise physical examination
for our drivers, and have formulated driver guidelines to ensure
the safety of drivers and passengers.

In this year, we have achieved zero (2019: Nil) work-related
casualty, and 14 (2019: 17) employees were injured at work.
Although cases of work-related injuries declined, we will spare
no efforts in this regard, and by keeping abreast of the goal of
achieving “zero” accident, we pledge to continue to make efforts
in improving safety protection facilities as well as strengthening
employees’ safety awareness, so as to reduce the risks of
accidents and work-related injuries to employees.
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6.

Employee caring (Continued)

6.3

6.4

Training and development

The Company pays great attention to the learning of its
employees, as their development will in turn be conducive to
the growth of the Group. Apart from the provision of orientation
trainings for new employees, we also develop appropriate
training programmes for the staff according to the Group's
development strategies and employees’ performance, including
in-house trainings and subsidised external trainings. By offering
them trainings and opportunities of development, we expect
the enhancement of their capabilities, so that the talent pool of
the Group will be sufficient to the development of its business.
In addition, department heads may submit relevant training
application for approval by the human resources department
based on the development needs of employees, so as to enhance
knowledge and skills of our employees. In this year, the total
number of participants of the Group’s trainings and the total
training hours thereof both increased to 7,749 (2019: 6,560) and
17,350 hours (2019: 16,003 hours), respectively, as compared to
last year.

Prevention and control measures for the epidemic

The outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19")
started in late 2019, which rapidly spread across the country
at the beginning of 2020. In light of the epidemic challenges,
our plants in China have promptly established the “epidemic
prevention and control team”. This team and the human resources
and administration department in Hong Kong are in charge for
developing relevant work plans and lead the prevention and
control work in China and Hong Kong, respectively. We have
taken relevant prevention and control measures under the
guideline issued by the local governments, so as to ensure physical
health of employees and a safe workplace and prevent disruption to
the operation of all subsidiaries and plants of the Group.

lﬂJ
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6. BIEET (#)

6.3

6.4
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Employee caring (Continued)

6.4 Prevention and control measures for the epidemic

(Continued)

Epidemic prevention and health

In order to prevent the infection and spread of the virus within
the Company, Hong Kong office and plants in China have taken a
series of epidemic prevention and health measures, including:

Traffic control

As required by the guideline issued by the local government,
our plants in China did not resume operation until 10 February.
Furthermore, our office in Hong Kong and plants in China strictly
implemented the operation resumption arrangement, including
requiring staff who have travelled to the infected areas to
undergo self-quarantine for 14 days before work resume. In
addition, the Company has cancelled all kinds of unnecessary
activities such as paying visits or receiving customers’ visits, every
person entering into the Company shall take body temperature
check and wear face mask the whole time, and all vehicles
entering into the plants shall be subject to sterilization process.
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Employees are required to wear face masks
during work within the plants

BRE AR BB MR AZIERE - B 13 XUk
Partitions have been installed at the canteens and
employees are required to keep social distance
so as to prevent cross-infection
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6.

Employee caring (Continued)

6.4 Prevention and control measures for the epidemic

(Continued)

Epidemic prevention equipment and material supply

In order to reduce the risk of spread, our Hong Kong office
and plants in China have provided employees with face masks,
handrub and a variety of sanitizing products. All staff are required
to wear face masks at work and keep social distance as much as
possible. We have carried out regular cleaning and sterilization
process at all public areas and for all facilities every day.

To reduce the risk of cross-infection when dining at the canteens
of our plants in China, we have installed partition on every
dining table and set headcount limit. In addition, the plants also
replaced the entrance device for drainage pipeline of the staff
quarters to block the air from circulating back into the room
through the pipeline, so as to prevent the spread of the virus
through drainage pipeline.

Work arrangement during the epidemic

Our plants in China arranged for operation resumption according
to the requirement of the local government, while our companies
in Hong Kong also arranged staff from various departments to
work by rotation or work at home in response to the initiatives
of the HKSAR government. Moreover, meetings with staff and
customers were held by video conference to reduce the risk of
cross infection from social contact and mass gatherings. As of the
date of this report, the Company recorded “zero” infection case.
The Group will continue to watch closely the development of the
epidemic and endeavor to minimise the impact of the epidemic on
our operation.

Staff care and epidemic information dissemination

Our plants in China have allocated a portion of the staff quarters
as temporary dormitory for staff undergoing 14-day self-
quarantine after returning to the plants, and assigned personnel
to deliver meals and purchase daily necessities for them. If
any employee didn't feel well, the Company assigned vehicles
and personnel to take them to the hospital and offer support.
For employees who were unable to return to the plants due to
citywide lockdown, we also reached out to get an understanding
of their situations and preserve their jobs and benefits. In
addition, the Company also circulated hygiene knowledge and
epidemic prevention information, correct way to wash hands
frequently and wear face masks as well as regular updates on the
Company's epidemic prevention arrangement to our employees in
China and Hong Kong via notice and social media platforms.
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Operations governance

7.1 Supply chain management

The Group puts a high premium on supplier management. We
have formulated procedures on purchasing control and supplier
management for the headsets and headphones business which
is designed to manage the suppliers in respect of quality,
delivery time, cost, services and safety, etc. We carry out strict
assessment on the new suppliers before acceptance of such
supplies to ensure they satisfy the requirements on quality
control, environmental management, green product management,
social responsibility, labour force, intellectual property rights
management, product safety and anti-terrorism, so as to prevent
their operations from having negative impacts on the environment
and society. Certain new changes occurred in the suppliers’
material supply, transportation and delivery schedule as a result
of the epidemic, given which, in order to shield the smooth
day-to-day manufacturing activities from being affected by
unexpected problems, the Group in the coming year will focus on
consolidating supply chain management, and strive to establish
strategic partnerships with its suppliers, so as to ensure that the
Group could overcome all obstacles successfully in spite of the
epidemic.

Information on suppliers of the Headsets and Headphones Plant
by region is as follows:

51 J 8

No. of suppliers
HEBEE
355

294 /
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7.

Operations governance (Continued)

7.2 Product liabilities

The Group is committed to providing premium and safe products
with reliable and consistent quality to customers. We have
developed the “Guidelines for Monitoring of Environmental Impact
of Products and Materials” for the headsets and headphones
business, with an aim to effectively monitor if the products and
materials used in the business activities satisfy international
requirement of “Hazardous Substances Free” ("HSF"). Regarding
new products and equipments, we will apply for environmental
tests so as to ensure they meet various environmental protection
requirements of customers.

We have obtained 1S09001:2015 & IATF16949:2016 Quality
Management System Certification in 2018 and obtained
QC080000:2017 Hazardous Substance Process Management
System Certification in July 2019, which demonstrated the
achievement in hazardous substance management and the
improvement in green product management made by the Group.
In the year, no product was mandatorily recalled due to safety
and health issues (2019: Nil).

§
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7.

Operations governance (Continued)

7.3 Service responsibility

The Group attaches importance to customers’ feedback and
opinions. Follow-up measures are taken and responses are given
regarding substandard products or customer complaints. In
accordance with the procedures as set out in the “Guidelines for
Handling Customer Complaints” of our headsets and headphones
business, we will get an understanding of the actual circumstance
on which a customer complains, and will handle such complaint
in a timely and efficient manner, so as to constantly improve
product quality and enhance customer satisfaction. During the
year, we received 1 customer complaint (2019: 1 customer
complaint). We will continue to reduce response time regarding
market feedback for better adaptation to the changeable market
condition.

In respect of intellectual property rights protection, the Group, on
the one hand, has established sound confidentiality system and
management procedures, such as the “New Product Introduction
Procedure”, the “Guidelines for Protection of Intellectual
Property Rights”, the “Guidelines for Comprehensive Sample
Management”, the “Guidelines for Employee Confidentiality
Agreement”, the "Guidelines for Comprehensive Security
Operation”, the “Documentation Control Procedures” as well
as professional document transmission control and management
systems etc., which have been strictly applied to every aspect
of the Company’s operation; On the other hand, the Company
abides by the laws and regulations of every country and
international organization in relation to protection of intellectual
property rights, so as to prevent unauthorised use of intellectual
property rights of any third party on our products. The measures
implemented by the Group are as follows:

1. Centralised product design: Product design is carried out
by one single department other than by various business
groups, enabling centralised management of the process by
design staff and also facilitating unified protection of design
information via single server.

2. Encrypted management of technological information:
Introduction of professional file encryption software such as
E-Lock to prevent unauthorised divulgence of technological
information.

£ 20192020 O/ =+B
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ERRE

Operations governance (Continued)

7.3 Service responsibility (Continued)

3.

Development of approval process for transmission of
technological information: In order to prevent unauthorised
file transmission, the rights of the author of technological
information, the approver for file transmission and the
operator of file transmission shall be separated, and the
technological information which have been approved
for transmission shall only be transmitted by authorised
operator via designated channel through point-to-point
encryption means.

Sample management: In addition to the “Guidelines for
Comprehensive Sample Management”, the Group has
assigned a dedicated code for each sample for management
of the physical product samples, so as to ensure traceable
management record for each physical sample to prevent
unauthorised leakage of products.

Life-cycle traceability system of products (including finished
products and key components): Products are traceable
through their lifetime from production to delivery or
controlled destruction by using their distinctive product
code, while key components are traceable through the whole
process from purchase to installation into the products via
the manufacturing execution system.

Implementation of employee confidentiality agreement
system: Every employee who may have access to confidential
technological information shall sign the "Employee
Confidentiality Agreement”, under which they are obligated
and responsible for keeping confidential the product
information and trade secrets of the Group.

Product design premises including the research and
development department and the offices of various business
units are under around-the-clock closed circuit television
surveillance.

For quotation evaluation before introduction of a new
project, infringement on intellectual property rights of any
third party is one of the important evaluation criteria. During
the research and development of new product project, the
product certification officer is responsible for production
certification and patent examination, so as to ensure that
the application of patented technology in relation to our
products is in compliance with the requirements of the laws
and regulations.

The above-mentioned procedures and management systems
as well as the operation equipment are running well, showing
satisfactory control results.
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7.

Operations governance (Continued)

7.4 Anti-corruption

The Group always upholds the principle of “honesty, integrity
and fairness” and relevant requirements have been set out
in corporate policy guidelines and codes of business ethics to
prohibit all Directors and employees from any kind of bribery
and corruption activities. New employees are required to sign
the “Confidentiality and Integrity Agreement” based on their
functions, which lists out clearly relevant anti-bribery policies of
the Group.

In order to prevent bribery and corruption practice, we have
established a mechanism for declaration of interests and
diversified reporting channels, such as reporting to the human
resources department in writing or by email. In addition, the
Group also makes every effort to keep confidential the identity
of the informant and to deal with each case in a fair and prudent
manner for the purpose of maintain a climate of integrity within
the Group.

In addition, we also promote message against bribery, blackmail,
fraud and money laundering through means such as orientation,
internal newsletters and notice board, so as to update employees’
knowledge of anti-corruption and keep them always vigilant
against such practices. The Group regularly invites representatives
from the Procuratorate of China and Independent Commission
Against Corruption of Hong Kong (“ICAC") to deliver lectures on
anti-corruption for our employees in China and Hong Kong, with
an aim to further improve and strengthen their anti-corruption
awareness.
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Community caring

The Group has always adhered to its core value of “We, as a corporate
citizen, devote ourselves to the prosperity of our society”. While cling
to business development, the Group have also fulfilled our corporate
social responsibility and made an active effort to engage in community
services. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has engaged
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in seven charity events and made total donations amounting to

HK$151,000 (2019: HK$176,000).
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8. Community caring (Continued)

8.1 Career guidance for students

As the young generation will be the pillars of the society in the
future, we take an active part in cultivating local talents and
providing career guidance, helping them to plan for their future
and career development. Like we have done over the past years,
we also offered summer internship for students from universities
and middle schools this year, providing them a chance to have
first-hand working experience in a real working environment
and gain a perception of the future career and career planning.
In addition, we scheduled our Headsets and Headphones Plant
visits for students in Hong Kong and overseas to enhance
their knowledge and understanding of the Group and the
manufacturing industry.

N
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8.

Community caring (Continued)

8.2 Engagement in public welfare

Our staff are dedicated to public welfare and proactively take part
in charity events, such as Yan Chai Charity Walk 2019. Although
several charity events have been cancelled this year due to the
social environment, the Group continued to make donations to
support fund-raising charity activities, including Lifeline Express
CCB (Asia) Charity Run/Walk 2019, Outward Bound Corporate
Challenge 2019, etc., to help those in need. In the face of
COVID-19 outbreak, we also made donation-in-kind to the
Hospital Authority in support of their effort in fighting against the
outbreak. Moreover, the Group, like the previous years, continued
to hold the “Fujikon Blood Donation Day” this year, which was
started since 2003 with an aim to make contribution to medical
institutions and patients in need.

Following last year, the Fujikon Volunteer Team continued to
participate in the “Care@Mid-Autumn Festival 2019" organised by
Yang Memorial Methodist Social Service this year, paying visit to
the elderly living alone to offer them gift packages and blessing
for Mid-Autumn Festival. Looking forward, we plan to expand our
volunteer team and participate in more community services, with
an aim to make greater contribution to the community.

The Group was awarded the Caring Certificate of “Industry Cares
5 Years Plus” and was accredited the “Caring Company 10 Years
plus” logo this year in recognition of our contribution to the
community for years, which also certified the Group's active role
in delivering its core value of “We, as a corporate citizen, devote
ourselves to the prosperity of our society”.
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9.

ESG Awards and certificates 9. RMAESGHIF K BH AR
9.1 Employment relationship awards 9.1 EEERRERRE
Awards Issuing agency
REEH TRE B
2020 Happy Company Promoting Happiness Index Foundation and Hong Kong
Productivity Council
R0 TERI2020 BREREEBRESRBEBLEENRER
9.2 Society contribution awards 9.2 HEERERRE
Awards Issuing agency
RIEEH HE e
Caring Certificates of “Industry Cares” 2019 Federation of Hong Kong Industries
[TEEE L2098 0 R EEIERS
Caring Company 2020 The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
5 B 122020 B ERBHE

Social Capital Builder (SCB) Awards 2018-2020 Community Investment & Inclusion Fund, Labour and

Welfare Bureau

& EAE11482018-2020 LIRBHRMEREHABES
9.3 Certificate of appreciation 9.3 Rk
Projects Issuing agency
HE &R AR
Future Star 2019 Commission on Poverty
R ZE 2019 KEZE®
Strive for Success 2019 Tuen Mun District Youth Programme Committee
BRI 4) 2019 TMESEEEHEES
Donation-in-kind in support of combat againist COVID-19 outbreak Hospital Authority
BRI E LA S #1201 9T W ARSS B = 1B BREER
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FUJIKON INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the
“"Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 80 to 158,
which comprise:

e  the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020;

e  the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B AR

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
o Net realisable value of inventories

o Impairment of trade receivables
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BREAEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B B AR

FRSEET FIHA)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNESNAEERRENSE

Net realisable value of inventories
Refer to Notes 4(a) and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2020, inventories of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$172.6 million. As
described in the accounting policies in Note 2.13 to
the consolidated financial statements, inventories are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Management applied judgement in determining the
appropriate provision for obsolete inventories and
inventories with net realisable value below cost. Net
realisable value is determined based upon a detailed
analysis of inventories aging, with reference to the
current marketability and latest selling prices of the
relevant inventories and the current market conditions
existing at the end of the year. For the year ended 31
March 2020, provision for inventories recognised as
expense amounted to approximately HK$16.3 million.

We focused on this area due to the size of the
balances and the judgement and estimates involved by
management in determining the net realisable value of
the inventories.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on net realisable value
of inventories included:

—  We understood and evaluated the key controls in relation to periodic
review on provision for inventories, and validated their effectiveness on a
sample basis.

—  We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of inventories aging used by
management to estimate the appropriate provision for slow moving and
obsolete inventories.

—  We performed analyses on inventories movement data to identify
inventories with indication of slow moving or obsolescence.

—  We reviewed the utilisation of raw materials, and completion of work-
in-progress, subsequent to year end, on a sample basis, to assess the
appropriateness of the associated provision made, if any.

—  We compared the carrying amounts of finished goods, on a sample
basis, to their net realisable values through a detailed review of sales
subsequent to the year end to check for completeness of the associated
provision. Where there are no subsequent sales of the respective finished
goods after the year end, we challenged management as to the realisable
values of the finished goods, corroborating explanations with the aging,
sales orders, historical margins and marketability of the respective
finished goods, as appropriate.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the judgement and estimates
made by management in relation to assessment of net realisable value of
inventories to be supportable by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BEETBE

FRESTSEIHE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
B R M AEERARETEE

Impairment of trade receivables
Refer to Notes 4(b) and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group held gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$175.7 million with
provision for loss allowance of approximately HK$7.4
million. Provision is made for lifetime expected credit
losses on trade receivables.

Management applied judgement in determining the
appropriate loss allowance on trade receivables. Trade
receivables relating to customers with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on collection are
assessed individually for provision for loss allowance.
Expected credit losses are estimated by grouping the
remaining trade receivables based on shared credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood
of recovery, taking into account the nature of the
customers, their geographical locations and their
ageing categories, and applying expected credit loss
rates to the respective gross carrying amounts of the
trade receivables. The expected credit loss rates are
determined based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience with an adjustment to reflect current and
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.

We focused on this area due to the size of the
balances and the judgement and estimates involved by
management in determining the expected credit loss
allowance of the trade receivables.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of provision for loss
allowance on trade receivables included:

We understood, evaluated and tested, on a sample basis, management's
key control over the assessment of recoverability of trade receivable
baYances and the related loss allowance, including periodic review on
tra(gle receivables aging, historical loss rates and approval of provision
made.

We checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of trade receivables aging
used by management to estimate the appropriate provision for Toss
allowance.

We obtained management’s assessment of the expected credit loss
allowance of trade receivables and assessed the reasonableness of
the expected loss rates. We corroborated and validated management’s
assessment based on the historical settlement pattern and correspondence
with the customers.

We assessed management’s assessment of current market condition and
forward-lookmg information such as macroeconomic factors by comparing
the data used by management against publicly available information.

We checked the mathematical accuracy of management's calculation for
loss allowance of trade receivables.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the judgement and estimates
made by management in relation to assessment of loss allowance on trade
receivables to be supportable by available evidence.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for
the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B AR

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ng Hiu Tung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBIRIAR

As at 31 March 2020
720203 A31H

Note 2020 2019
i HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets ERENE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BER&ME 6 113,119 142,442
Investment property wEWZE 7 1,500 1,400
Right-of-use assets ERESE 8 24,419 -
Land use rights -+t AR A . 9 = 3,879
Non-current deposits and other assets FEREIREe REMEE 2,417 4,812
Financial assets at fair value through other BAFEFAEMER
comprehensive income WIS & E 10 4,063 3,979
Deferred income tax assets BT EMMEE 17 8,543 6,644
Total non-current assets EMEEELE 154,061 163,156
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 12 172,582 313,876
Trade receivables FEWE 13 168,276 258,226
Other receivables H b g FkoE 13 30,021 39,149
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFAERHN
profit or loss B 7% & 14 1,448 2,109
Current income tax recoverable ] Y Bl S ER PR 15 %5 316 1,003
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEED 15 421,768 263,137
Total current assets MBEERE 794,411 877,500
Current liabilities FREBEE
Trade payables FERTER 16 108,809 173,121
Contract liabilities, accruals and EHNBE - EEBEAK
other payables H M E S 3RIR 16 106,429 125,690
Lease liabilities HEAE 6,880 -
Current income tax liabilities EHFGHAaRE 4,714 4,805
Total current liabilities BB ERE 226,832 303,616
_Net currentassets _ HKBEERE 567,579 573,884
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABERS 721,640 737,040
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Lease liabilities HEBE 3,940 =
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFTBH AR 17 1,825 2,184
_Total non-current liabilities _____ JEeBAEeE 5765 2,184
Net assets EEFE 715,875 734,856
Equity =
Capital and reserves attributable to the BEAQATREREAZ
Company's equity holders BRA R
Share capital PR 18 42,584 42,584
Other reserves HfihfE 20 151,280 171,771
Retained earnings R g A
— Proposed dividends —EE B 26 12,775 21,292
- Others —HAfth 443,613 437,446
650,252 673,093
Non-controlling interests FEFE S M R 65,623 61,763
Total equity DA 715,875 734,856

The financial statements on pages 80 to 158 were approved by the Board of
Directors on 18 June 2020 and were signed on its behalf.

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY

B

Chairman
e

H N EB0E 1588 2 B 15 < B 120206 518 H %

BEERHETRKRHUTEEFRARES -

YUEN YEE SAI, SIMON

R T AR

Joint Deputy Chairman

b B L

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompany notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GEEEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2020

EZE2020F3 A31B ILFE
Note 2020 2019
s HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue WA 21 1,250,173 1,411,795
Cost of sales SHE R A (1,007,807) (1,154,092)
Gross profit ER 242,366 257,703
Other gains — net H bWz —F5E 22 1,433 8,046
Distribution and selling expenses 28 R E S (9,789) (14,293)
General and administrative expenses —MRRITHE N (163,735) (166,569)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables JE Ui B 2 el B 4 (5,067) (871)
Operating profit RERA 23 65,208 84,016
Finance income — net BB WA —FEE 24 4,720 4,572
Profit before income tax BR A 18 i A E R 69,928 88,588
Income tax expenses FriS &S 25 (18,047) (19,620)
Profit for the year FREA 51,881 68,968
Other comprehensive income: Hib2mEUE
Items that have been reclassified or may be EE# 7 He B Al iR E
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss: TR Em 2 HA -
— Currency translation differences —EHZEE (23,987) (26,683)
— Fair value gains on financial assets —BAFEFAEMEER
at fair value through other WEHRIEEEZ
comprehensive income N ERE 10 84 51
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMEEEKE
ometoftax ] emmsie (23,903) (26,632)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENELETE 27,978 42,336
Profit attributable to: HREEE
Equity holders of the Company ZiN/NEI TSP =N 28,991 40,490
Non-controlling interests IR 2R 22,890 28,478
51,881 68,968
Total comprehensive income attributable to: EEHKREHAERS -
Equity holders of the Company RAGIRERE A 6,968 15,795
Non-controlling interests FEE Il 1 2 21,010 26,541
27,978 42,336
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the FREBEAATRERZEA
equity holders of the Company for the year: ZRANERER
— Basic (HK cents per share) — ZEAR(ZRBM) 27 6.8 9.6
— Diluted (HK cents per share) — s (B 27 6.8 9.5

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompany notes.
AR A ST e 5 E B B B PR S — OB RE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BZE20205F3 A31 B ILFE

ﬂConsoIidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company

BEREAARREREA
Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling Total
Note capital  reserves  earnings interests equity
FF I
Btz BEA  HitRE REEH Ba  ERAS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2018 RK2018F4H1H 42,107 191,739 456,274 54,822 744,942
Profit for the year FREF - - 40,490 28,478 68,968
Other comprehensive income: Hp 2
— Currency translation differences —-ERER 20 - (24,746) - (1,937) (26,683)
~ Fair value gains on financial assets —RATEFAEMEE
at fair value through other Wt BBEE
comprehensive income NEEKE 20 - 51 - - 51
Total comprehensive income for the year HZE219F3A31BILFE
ended 31 March 2019 FHENRAE - (24,695) 40,490 26,541 42,336
Transactions with owners in their capacity BAENERAE SR
as owners: ETNRS
Employee share option scheme: ESBRESE
~ Lapse of share options — BRI R N 20 = (45) 45 = =
~ Proceeds from shares issued upon exercise — TR B TR D
of share options ZFEEE 20 477 4,772 - - 5,249
Dividends paid BHE&E - - (38071) (196000  (57671)
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3H31H 42,584 171,771 458,738 61,763 734,856
Profit for the year FAEF - - 28991 22,890 51,881
Other comprehensive income: Hip 2wz
- Currency translation differences —ERERE 20 - (22,107) = (1,880)  (23,987)
— Fair value gains on financial assets —BATEGAEMBER
at fair value through other YRR BEE
comprehensive income AT EKE 20 - 84 - - 84
Total comprehensive income for the year HZ200F3A31HILFE
ended 31 March 2020 2ENEHE - (22,023) 28,991 21,010 27,978
Transactions with owners in their capacity BTAENEAE D
as owners: ETNRS
Employee share option scheme: EEERENE
— Lapse of share options — BRI R A 20 = (16) 16 = =
Appropriation of statutory reserve RS ETFRE 20 - 1,548 (1,548) - -
Dividends paid BB - - (29,809) (17,150)  (46,959)
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3H31H 42,584 151,280 456,388 65,623 715,875

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompany notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

gﬁ’. = EE%UILE%‘

For the year ended 31 March 2020

BE2020F3 A31HIEFE
Note 2020 2019
=2 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRENE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations TS, (FTR)
ZHRE 30(a) 251,481 (24,538)
Interest paid BAFE (59) (24)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EANEEARET (12,841) (16,364)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded EREFBNEN 1,009 95
Withholding tax on dividends paid B ETEHH (1,389) -
China corporate income tax paid HEP Bl 1R PR T (7,752) (9.477)
China corporate income tax refunded RIRP B EME 985 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating RESEENRES,/ (FFA) 2
activities WeFH 231,434 (50,308)
Cash flows from investing activities REZHEESRE
Interest received EUAIE 5,064 4,749
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAYE  HEREB (20,432) (42,120)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME  BE KERE
equipment FRASSE 270 844
Increase in non-current deposits IERENIZ AN (336) (3,061)
Net cash used in investing activities KEREMAZE T8 (15,434) (39,588)
Cash flows from financing activities METHRESRE
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options RITEEBE M TR 30(b) - 5,249
Proceeds from borrowings BEMERIEA 30(b) 10,000 =
Repayment of borrowings EEEES 30(b) (10,000) =
Principal elements of lease payments HENRZREHH 30(b) (7,902) =
Interest portion of lease liabilities HEAGBZIEHD 30(b) (406) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests in a =ENLTIPNCIE 2 ] e
subsidiary et 7 IS 30(b) (17,150) (19,600)
Dividends paid to the Company’s equity BEARAA Tﬂxfgﬁﬁ/\
holders 2B 30(b) (29,809) (38,071)
_Net cash used in financing activities MEZDAZREFE (55.267) (52.422)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeERBELESEYEM
cash equivalents OR4) #5 160,733 (142,318)
Exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents B RBReEEYEL =5 (2,102) (3,178)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FURERIBLEEY 263,137 408,633
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRESRBELSEEY 15 421,768 263,137

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompany notes.
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General information

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the design,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of electro-acoustic products,
accessories and other electronic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS")
and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of investment property, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards, improvement (a)
and interpretations to standards (collectively
the "Amendments”) adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following Amendments for the first

time for its financial year commencing on 1 April 2019:

HKFRSs (Amendments)
BB EER(ERTA)

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)
BB R EERF IR (EFTA)

HKFRS 16
BARMBHREERE165%

HKAS 19 (Amendments)
BB ERFE195%(EFTAR)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)
BB TR FE285 (BRI A)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 23

R (ERMBEHRERBEES) —RBE23R

The Group had changed its accounting policies as a result of
adopting HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16"). The Group elected
to adopt the new rules retrospectively but recognised the
cumulative effect of initially applying the new standard on 1
April 2019. This is disclosed in Note 2.2. Most of the other
amendments listed above did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to

significantly affect the current or future periods.
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2.1 REEEE)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continved) 2
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards that have been (b)

issued but are not effective

A number of new and amended standards are effective for the
Group's annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020 and
have not been early adopted in preparing these consolidated
financial statements:

8|
ETHIIREET LR AER
2020F4 1A sk 2 & AR 2 F X 5
MEER  ERREZERETH
R ARIER R M ¢

Definition of a business’

Rz ER

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)
B HREERFEITR(EFTA)

Interest rate benchmark reform’

A R B A

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 (Amendments)
BRI EERFIR BEFENFEIN K
BB EEREIHRUEFTA)

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture?

REEREBENRRALRAZHZEELEIIRAS

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BB SRS ERE 1057 &
BB EHERE285R (BRTA)

HKFRS 17
BAMBHREERSE175

Insurance contracts?

ol=Niok

Definition of material’

EXZER

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments)
B GFTERE15 BB ERFESH (BT A)

Conceptual framework for financial reporting 2018
SR E B S HEZR2018

Revised conceptual framework for financial reporting’

BIERT 2 IS RE B SER

1 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2020
F120205F1 A1 B sk 2 12 Fh 2 B F AR

2 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2021
H20214F1 A1 Bk 2 12 Fh 2 B F R AR

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined

1) 7R 5 5E 58 1l AR 2 H B

REBRIEFFGEZ SN RRER
RANBRERABTRNZE  H
R B i R BE R am ek F R AT IR AR (E
RIEAEEHERERE RPN
MBREMEATE -

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and amendments to standards upon initial
application but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new and amendments to standards would have any significant
impact on its results of operations and financial positions.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved) 2 FEEFBRBME &)
2.2 B BERED

2.2 Change in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1 above, the Group has adopted HKFRS 16
retrospectively from 1 April 2019, but has not restated comparatives
for the 2019 reporting period, as permitted under the specific
transition provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and
the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are therefore
recognised in the opening consolidated statement of financial
position on 1 April 2019. The new accounting policies are disclosed
in Note 2.24.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities
in relation to leases which had previously been classified as
"operating leases” under the principles of HKAS 17 “Leases” (“HKAS
17"). These liabilities were measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate as of 1 April 2019.

(i) Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used
the following practical expedients permitted by the standards:

e applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with reasonably similar characteristics;

e relying on previous assessments on whether leases are
onerous as an alternative to performing an impairment
review — there were no onerous contracts as at 1 April
2019;

e  accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease
term of less than 12 months as at 1 April 2019 as short-
term leases;

e excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the
right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and

o using hindsight in determining the lease term where the

contract contains options to extend or terminate the
lease.

£4§ 20192020 &/

Hot
H,
i
il

AU R ERABTBM RS LR F 165
HAKEGEVBRRITE -

S an ESCEIRE2. 1 A al - ANSE B 5201944
A1BRBEPRAET BT EREELZE16
5% MR ZEREE BB
WEEZ2019FFHEHAEA L REFE - B
it FHERIEENETDEMAER
20194 A1 A F 4R A B ISR R P i
R oo YT BURMAM FE2.24 % 5 -

RIERMBE BT B RS LR F16550F - NE
Et AR B A S R E175R [ E ]
(BB ETENEEDNRIDEA
[aflE  NEERRATEEARE - %258
ERAENRAENERE(EAEREAE
F2019F4 A1 B B FTIE 18 SR K BL3R ) &1

=
E-°

(i) FIERMWITEERE
RERERETBMEHRSEDE16
SREF - NEBECERZER AR
AT RIITREA

. HABAERALSEGHEEE
BERE—BRE

e IKBENMENEERTHBIEN
FEERETRERIHNER
R — 201954818 W&
BIEAH

o 2019FAFVB FATHE IR
NEAMKEHENSHHEE
ABR

s HEHXERBHHKRILERE
AN EEREEE « &

s ERNBESERIKLEEN
BERER - UERDOITAERE
M -

5
I



_———

I

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B Rk MY R

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

Practical expedients applied (Continued)

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract
is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application.
Instead, for contracts entered into before the transition date
the Group relied on its assessment made applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC) 4 "Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease”.

(ii) Measurement of lease liabilities

2 FESTHHREME®)
2.2 BHBESE (&)

()

FRERNTITRERLE(E)
AEBREREINENTHAENE
BXRERAMESEHExESH
Bk HREBEKAH AR
YHAEH  AEEREBEEEEER
RS EANEN TR REE(EERY
BHRERELZBE)RBRINREE
ZHRBBEAE IMELMNFTR

(i) HEAEZFE

HK$'000
Operating lease commitments disclosed as 7201953 A31 H B HE AV & MH G AE
at 31 March 2019 (Note 31(b)) (P EE31(b)) 20,351
Discounted using the Group's incremental fF RS B &R FE A B BAAY 5T 38 {8 50 =
borrowing rate of the date of initial application: ~ B3R :
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 April 2019 2019548 1B REANEESE 19,617
Of which are: HAgiE
— Current lease liabilities —nBHEAE 8,177
— Non-current lease liabilities —ERBEHEEE 11,440
19,617

(iii) Measurement of right-of-use assets

The associated right-of-use assets were measured at the
amount equal to the lease liabilities on adoption, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2019. There were no onerous
lease contracts that would have required an adjustment to the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)

(iv) Adjustments recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position on 1 April
2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following items
in the consolidated statement of financial position on 1 April
2019:

o Property, plant and equipment — decreased by
HK$10,633,000

o Land use rights — decreased by HK$3,879,000

o Right-of-use assets — increased by HK$34,129,000

o Lease liabilities — increased by HK$19,617,000

There was no impact on retained earnings on 1 April 2019.

2.3 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
March.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group's accounting policies.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such
re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their
present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate
used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in
their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3

2.4

2.5

Consolidation (Continued)

In the Company’s standalone financial statements, investments in
subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee's
net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(the “CODM"). CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors who collectively make strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

(b)
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.
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REUBERKRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continved) 2 FEEFTBERBE#)
25 SEBEE)
(b) RBRER(E)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, are included in
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income presented are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average rate is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group's ownership
interest in associates or joint ventures that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference
is reclassified to consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment, other than construction-in-
progress, are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment loss. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 2.5% to 8'5%
Machinery and moulds 10% to 50%
Furniture and equipment 20% to 30%
Motor vehicles 30%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within
“other gains/(losses) — net”, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost represents consideration
paid for the rights to use the land on which various plants and
buildings are situated for a period of 50 years. Amortisation of land
use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of
leases.

As disclosed in Note 2.2, the Group has adopted HKFRS 16
retrospectively from 1 April 2019, but has not restated comparatives
for the 2019 reporting period, as permitted under the specific
transition provisions in the standard. The reclassifications from
land use rights to right-of-use asset arising from the new leasing
standards are therefore recognised in the opening consolidated
statement of financial position on 1 April 2019.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8

2.9

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress represents office buildings under
construction and machinery and equipment pending installation. It
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss. Cost includes the
original cost of land, construction expenditures incurred, machinery
and equipment and related installation costs, and other costs
attributable to the construction of the buildings and installation of
machinery and equipment. No depreciation is provided in respect
of construction-in-progress until the construction work is completed
and ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are brought
into use, the costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment
and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated above.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in
the consolidated group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed
annually by external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Investment property (Continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of
transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation reserve of property,
plant and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested at
least annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.11Financial assets

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income (“0CI") or through
profit or loss); and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes.

£ 20192020 97/

Hot
H,
i
il

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBERKRMEE

2 FESHBEME#)
2.9 REYE L)

R - MBS EE RS e
BIEEDE  HEREEEAZERESERD
FEZAMESE  BRESSSENS
165N IESNERBYME  BEREES
B - A > WA FERSEDBAER
BEEE  AZBREERGEZ2ERER
FIER o

210 FMBEEZRE

B EEAMRK AT RERANEES
REHERIE BT EERFIYAE
ﬂK’J\*/AfJEWEEWﬁ WA E SIS

RBEBRREREREEEZRDR - A&
lH«;.FrfEEiéFE’J/MEI 50 MEER®E
BRRSH AN E S BN HRBERRRERS
B RDeBEREEAFEREERAK
BHEE BEEABEIHANREE °
REHMEEERE - BERAIBIER S H
RenE(ReELEM)N&RNEME
n o NEEJREAE - e T HRRE
Z I A E (RBRINIELFHE - AR
ERB A EFEHRERE -

QN BKEE

(a) o8
AEBBENBEELRANTGTE8
billla =

. BEBRATENEGIARS
2T WS (1 H A 2 W as 1) sk
u+)\]t§ ) &

o HIRMHRAFE -

BZOBBMRREBEREMBEER
ReRBANPZRBER -

R AFEFENEEMS  HIK
mRBERESERE M2 E KR
R HRUFEFFEEENRATA
BE - BBORREAEERER %G
FERR B T AT B R B IR A P E R
ARmEEEE(RAFEFAE
2w ) SRR AR -

EEERESAE L EHUATE
BB AEEFSHEBREE
FEIAB -

5
I



I

_————

f

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B Rk MY R

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.11Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Recognition and derecognition

(c)

Regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

(i) Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in “other gains/
(losses) — net” together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.11Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued) (c) FTEE)
(i) Debt instruments (Continued) (i) EEIAE)
e FVOCI: o AFHEFAEMEEN
Fiar) 5
Assets that are held for collection of contractual BIERBEHRERER

cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in “other
gains/(losses) — net”. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in “other
gains/(losses) — net” and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

FVPL:

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within “other gains/(losses) — net” in
the period in which it arises.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.11Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

(ii) Equity instruments
The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in “other gains/(losses) — net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. For trade receivables and contract
assets, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted
by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, details
are disclosed in Note 13.

2 FESTHHEMES®)
L1 MBEEE)

(c)

(d)

FTE(E)

(i) R&ATH
REBHERRAVEFENS
BRAKRE - WAKBEEERED
EEREEHMEE KRS 25K
AEE 2 AP EWENEE
AIER FEREBIRER - B
BIAEEAFEREREBES
MOBERD - BERKREZR
SR E B S WK R %
EEBEEREERAREMUA -

AT EH AR RN EE
> ATERDREAS R E K%
w0l E b lkas,/ (B518) — %
F R (HER) - BATE
A f 2 T U R AR 2
L5 1B R BB 8 2 D)
TEREMATERDHHL
% o

HAE

AEBIZABREE 2 E%E 5
HIZ B SHBOAR R 32 R ERT AEAD
2EKEEH A BEEDE
EEE - ERZBEEDURAR
EERBRELE RE L - BLER
EREAEHNEENS  AEEER
BFRVEMEEREIRMAAFZE
ERIETE  ERERME2HER
7B A2 R R B WGR IR T A RE R
(FFERMIRE135EE) -

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited 1 OO Annual Report 2019/2020



Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises design costs, raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.14Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The Group's
accounting for trade receivables and impairment policies are
disclosed in Note 2.11.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.15Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows.

2.16Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.17 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

12 months after the end of the reporting period.

All borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liabilities where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.19Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution plans
in Hong Kong and China. The schemes are generally funded
through payments to insurance companies or trustee-
administered funds. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

e including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

e  excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save).

At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

When the options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
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The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Company's
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.21Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.22Revenue recognition

(a) Sales of merchandise

Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customer, and either the customer has
accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price

specified in the contract, net of discounts, returns and value
added taxes.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a) Sales of merchandise (Continued)

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered, as
this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required before the
payment is due. Substantially all of the Group's revenue are
recognised at a point in time during the year.

Deposits collected from the customers before product delivery
are recognised as contract liabilities.

Interest income

(b)
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

(c)

Management fees income

Management fees income is recognised over time as
management service is rendered.

(d)

Handling income

Handling income is recognised when the Group satisfied the
performance obligation in accordance with the substance of
relevant agreements. Invoices are generated and revenue is
recognised at that point in time.

2.23 Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue
before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed
for expected credit losses in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 3.1(b) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue.
A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised. For a single contract with
the customer, either a net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.24Leases

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee. The new
policy is described below and the impact of the change in Note 2.2.

Until 31 March 2019, leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership were retained by the lessor were
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) were charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 April 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable; and

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.24 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses recent
third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third
party financing was received.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability; and

e any initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.
While the Group revalues its land and buildings that are presented
within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for
the right-of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor
is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as
lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position based on their nature.
The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting
for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.25Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability
at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured
at fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

e the amount determined in accordance with the expected credit
loss model under HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (“HKFRS 9”);
and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (“HKFRS 15").

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument and
the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or
the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for
assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of
associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of
the investment.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, as appropriate.

2.27 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are deferred and credited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets.
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Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management policy focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Market risk

)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and China
with transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollars
("HKD"), Renminbi (“RMB") and US dollars (“USD"). The
Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they
relate.

In order to mitigate the foreign currency risk, the Group
has been closely monitoring its foreign currency exposure
and requirements and will arrange for any foreign
exchange forward contracts if necessary. There was no
outstanding foreign exchange forward contract as at 31
March 2020 and 2019.

At 31 March 2020, if HKD/USD had weakened/
strengthened by 5% (2019: 2%) against RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been approximately HK$61,000 (2019:
HK$44,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on net impact on translation of
RMB-denominated net monetary assets of subsidiaries
in Hong Kong and HKD/USD-denominated net monetary
assets of subsidiaries in China.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Price risk

The Group's investment bonds, listed securities and
investment fund are susceptible to market price risk
arising from uncertainties about future prices of those
financial assets at FVOCI and FVPL. Management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles. Management
considered that the exposure of investment bonds,
listed securities and investment fund to price risk is not
significant.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities except for certain bank deposits, the Group’s
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group generally does not use financial derivatives to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

Management does not anticipate significant impact
resulted from the changes in interest rates on interest-
bearing assets.

(b) Credit risk

(i)

Risk management

The credit risk of the Group's financial assets, which
mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and contract assets, other receivables, and
financial assets at FVPL and FVOCI, arises from potential
default of the counterparties, with maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

)

(i)

Risk management (Continued)

At 31 March 2020 and 2019, substantially all cash and
bank deposits are placed with major financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and China which management
believes are of high credit quality. Management does not
expect any losses arising from non-performance by these
counterparties.

The credit risk of debtors is managed by a credit
evaluation process which includes assessment and
evaluation of existing and potential customers’ credit
standing to determine the credit limits to be granted,
credit policies, credit control and collection procedures.
Payments are monitored for compliance with credit
terms.

Credit risk of FVPL and FVOCI is considered minimal.

Impairment of financial assets
Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and
contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
and contract assets have been grouped based on similar
risk characteristics and, collectively or individually,
assessing them for likelihood of recovery. The contract
assets have substantially the same risk characteristics
as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts.
The Group has therefore concluded that the expected
loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The Group categorises its trade receivables and contract
assets, except those individually assessed, based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before
31 March 2020 or 1 April 2019 respectively and the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced
within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables and contract assets.

Given the track record of regular repayment of trade
receivables, the directors are of the opinion that the
risk of default by these customers is not significant,
taking into account forward-looking information on
macroeconomics factors. Therefore, expected credit loss
rate of trade receivables is assessed to be insignificant.

For trade receivables relating to accounts in which
there are objective evidence that the debtor faces
significant financial difficulties or enter liquidation, they
are assessed individually for impairment allowance.
Accordingly, loss allowance of HK$7,399,000 was made
as at 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$2,375,000).

Debt instruments

All of the entity’s debt instruments at FVOCI are
considered to have low credit risk. Instruments are
considered to be low credit risk when they have a low
risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The credit quality of other receivables has been assessed
with reference to historical information about the
counterparties’ default rates and financial position of the
counterparties. The directors are of the opinion that the
credit risk of other receivables is low due to the sound
collection history of the receivables due from them.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of other receivables
is assessed to be close to zero and no provision was
made as of 31 March 2020.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding to the liquidity
structure of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and
commitments of the Group. The Group also maintains a
healthy level of liquid assets and committed banking facilities
to ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to meet
any unexpected and material cash requirements in the
ordinary course of business. At 31 March 2020, the Group has
unutilised committed banking facilities of HK$160,600,000
(2019: HK$160,600,000).
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining periods
of which at the end of the reporting period to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

EEMER
3.1 BiIEABREEE)

() REMERER(E)
TRBAEE M BABRBRSE
HEAERAERHI A 2T H
Mo R=HEMBARNELD
e RPMBBESBERRANARIR

=}
Iﬁi/ﬁi ©

Within 1 year 1-2 years Total
15X 1225 A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At 31 March 2020 720203 H31H
Trade and other payables JE AN B 0 B LAt e A~ 3R IR 122,295 = 122,295
Lease liabilities HEaE 7,088 4,022 11,110
129,383 4,022 133,405

At 31 March 2019 7M2019%3H31H
Trade and other payables FE B R % E A FE A FRIR 187,577 = 187,577

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of total equity, including
share capital, other reserves and retained earnings.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group was at the net cash
position.

3.2 EXEKER

REBEREER  UREREEHRE
FELE - BERREHRLEE L ASEAMH S
A TRENED - SRREERGEN
PRAKE AR ©

REFIABENER  AKEXSHE
ERPERRZBESE  BEABERRK
BATH AR DB IR -

REBAAER - BN - BfbREER
REBENSERERER -

720204F }22019F3 A31H » REEE R
RIS AR ©
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Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair value of the Group's assets and liabilities are classified into
3 levels of the fair value measurement hierarchy prescribed under
the accounting standards and disclosed as below:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices).

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2020.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.3 DNEEME

BERHER  AEMEERABZAT
BEHEABATEHNEER  BHRE
T :

FHR — HRBEEXABEEZRMSH

F2H —

3 —

HECREHAR) -

BERRBEZBAEQLIERRE
REVBARZHRE) - HEATEE
(BR)KEE(E BRI H)K
BEGL -

BEXABZHBAE LK
EAIBIR 2 15 iR (VAR
RZBANE) -

T&RZ25AREBN202063831 B A F
B2 MIEEE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1K F24% FE38K st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets -3
Financial assets at FVPL BATEFABRZ
W EE
— Listed equity securities and —FTREZIF K
investment fund RERES 1,448 = = 1,448
Financial assets at FVOCI RAFESGAEMET
Wz 2 B IS &
— Corporate bonds —hEES - 4,063 - 4,063
Total HBET 1,448 4,063 - 5,511
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Financial risk management (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

BEERERE)

3.3 AFEME(E)

The following table presents the Group's financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2019.

TX 25N & ER2019F3 A31 B8 A F
B 22 MIEEE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R FE2R E3R HE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Assets BEE
Financial assets at FVPL EBEAYEFABE®mZ
W5 EE
— Listed equity securities and —FREZFR
investment fund K"EES 2,109 = = 2,109
Financial assets at FVOCI EAVEFAEMEE
Wk 2 BF 75 & B
— Corporate bonds —hEES - 3,979 - 3,979
Total HBET 2,109 3,979 - 6,088

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
(such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-
sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the statement of
financial position date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety
of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period. Quoted
market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for
long-term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash
flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

There was no transfer of financial assets between Level 1 and
Level 2 during the year.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

()

Estimated provision for inventories

The Group makes provision for inventories based on an assessment
of the realisability of inventories. Provisions are recognised where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of inventories may not be realised. The identification of provision
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of inventories and provision for inventories in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Estimated loss allowance for trade receivables

The loss allowances for trade receivables are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1(b).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, and
related depreciation charge for its property, plant and equipment.
The estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives. It will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expense in future
periods.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(Continued)

(d) Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment and
land use rights are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell.
These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in asset impairment review
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of an asset is less than the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) whether
appropriate key assumptions are applied in preparing cash flow
projections including using an appropriate discount rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in the impairment
assessment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group's financial position and results of operations. If there
is a significant adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to charge
an impairment loss to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(Continued)

(e)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management expects it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available to utilise against the
temporary differences or tax losses. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred income tax assets in the period in which
such estimates have been changed.

Provision for withholding tax that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries is subject to
management’s estimates that the Company controls the dividend
policies of these subsidiaries.

Segment information

CODM has been identified as the executive directors. CODM reviews
the Group’s internal reports in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating segments based on
these reports.

CODM assesses the performance of the business from a product
perspective, i.e. by headsets and headphones, and accessories and
components.

CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on
segment results before corporate expenses, other gains and losses,
finance income and costs.

Revenue between segments is carried out in accordance with the terms
mutually agreed by the respective parties. The revenue from external
parties is derived from numerous external customers and is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Segment information (Continued) DEER#)
Headsets and Accessories and
headphones components Elimination Total
ARERRETEER BHREHS sy @it
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS "000
Segment revenue AEUA
— External revenue — MR 913,816 1,077,404 336,357 334,391 - - 1,250,173 1,411,795
— Inter-segment revenue —HEEBA - - 38,984 46,675  (38,984)  (46,675) - -
Total FE 913,816 1,077,404 375,341 381,066 (38,984) (46,675) 1,250,173 1,411,795
Segment results DEELE 15,918 21,294 52,413 62,619 = - 68,331 83,913
Corporate expenses TETH (4,556) (7,943)
Other gains — net Hftin — 548 1,433 8,046
Finance income — net RMEMWA —F5 4,720 4,572
Profit before income tax BRETIE T AT &R 69,928 88,588
Other segment information: ~ 5B
Depreciation of property, mE - BER
plant and equipment REHE 25,106 22,109 9,165 8,887 - - 34M 30,996
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ FFEEEZHTE
assets 1,607 - 6,965 - - - 8,572 -
Amortisation of land use T FRRE B
rights = 159 = - = - = 159
Provision/(reversal of RERE/ (BIB)
provision) for inventory
obsolescence 13,108 7,009 3,142 (876) - - 16,250 6,133
Provision for impairment of  FEUTE FR(E
trade receivables e 5,030 871 37 = - = 5,067 871
Additions to non-current JEREE EL
assets (other than financial ~ (BR&®TAK
instruments and deferred BRI
income tax assets) BEN) 15,189 34,773 8,328 10,558 - = 23,517 45,331




Segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020, revenues of approximately
HK$921,654,000 (2019: HK$1,038,684,000) were derived from three
(2019: three) customers, amounting to approximately HK$348,709,000,
HK$294,693,000 and HK$278,252,000 respectively, which individually
accounted for over 10% of the Group's total revenue. These revenues
consisted of approximately HK$645,157,000 (2019: HK$768,003,000)
and HK$276,497,000 (2019: HK$270,681,000) attributable to headsets
and headphones segment and accessories and components segment
respectively.

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. Revenue from external
customers attributed to Hong Kong for the year ended 31 March 2020
was approximately HK$1,181,480,000 (2019: HK$1,296,210,000), and
the total revenue from external customers from China was approximately
HK$68,693,000 (2019: HK$115,585,000).

At 31 March 2020, the total non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred income tax assets located in Hong Kong and
China were approximately HK$28,267,000 (2019: HK$28,121,000) and
HK$113,188,000 (2019: HK$124,412,000) respectively.
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6 Property, plant and equipment

6 WX HERRE

Leasehold Furniture
land and Machinery and Motor
buildings and moulds equipment vehicles Total
HELH B Bk
REF &R ET] AE st
HKS " 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ " 000 HK$ 000
At 1 April 2018 R2018%4H1H
Cost B A 180,306 233,847 140,635 18,721 573,509
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (94,950) (198,284) (124,796) (17,581) (435,611)
Net book amount REFE 85,356 35,563 15,839 1,140 137,898
Year ended 31 March 2019 BZ2019F3A31H
LEE
Opening net book amount FONREEE 85,356 35,563 15,839 1,140 137,898
Additions 1R 3,029 24,625 11,616 3,769 43,039
Disposals HE = (54) (20) = (74)
Depreciation charge MEHRS (6,037) (16,110) (7,690) (1,159) (30,996)
Exchange differences B ER (4,202) (2,230) (930) (63) (7,425)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 78,146 41,794 18,815 3,687 142,442
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31H
Cost A 173,680 229,120 140,925 19,009 562,734
Accumulated depreciation it E (95,534) (187,326) (122,110) (15,322) (420,292)
Net book amount REFE 78,146 41,794 18,815 3,687 142,442
Year ended 31 March 2020 B Z2020F3A31H
LEE
Opening net book amount FONREFEE 78,146 41,794 18,815 3,687 142,442
Leasehold land reclassified to REME BT BRE
right-of-use assets on adoption ERIE16ERN
of HKFRS 16 (Note 2.2) DEEERREE
ZTHE (R
2.2) (10,633) - - - (10,633)
Opening net book amount, FREEE
as restated x5 67,513 41,794 18,815 3,687 131,809
Additions N 1,601 12,684 6,083 2,616 22,984
Disposals HE = (2) (15) - (17)
Depreciation charge TERX (5,598) (18,200) (8,558) (1,915) (34,271)
Exchange differences AR (3,707) (2,661) (969) (49) (7.386)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 59,809 33,615 15,356 4,339 113,119
At 31 March 2020 M2020%3A31H
Cost BN 150,457 227,476 139,300 18,824 536,057
Accumulated depreciation ZEihE (90,648) (193,861) (123,944) (14,485) (422,938)
Net book amount BREFE 59,809 33,615 15,356 4,339 113,119

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation expense of HK$26,380,000 (2019: HK$23,359,000) has been
included in cost of sales and HK$7,891,000 (2019: HK$7,637,000) in
general and administrative expenses.

At 31 March 2019, the Group's interests in leasehold land at net book
value of HK$10,633,000 is located in Hong Kong and held on leases
between 10 to 50 years.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBERKRMEE

ME - - BMERREZ)

T £ 7 226,380,000/ 7T (2019 : 23,359,000/
TC) B AR S5 E R AN K2 7,891,00078 7T.(2019 ¢
7,637,000/ 70) EM AR — M RITERZ H ©

20193 A31H + AEERERE)F{E10,633,000
BT ZHE T 2 SR BB W A10E504F
HOESE -

Investment property REY*
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Beginning of the year F1) 1,400 1,200
Fair value gains (Note 22) NFEEWRES (BTEE22) 100 200
End of the year FR 1,500 1,400

For the year ended 31 March 2020, outgoings in respect of investment
property amounted to HK$4,000 (2019: HK$4,000).

The investment property was revalued at 31 March 2020 by LCH (Asia-
Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer.
Valuation was based on current prices in an active market.

At 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group’s interests in investment property
is wholly located in Hong Kong and held on leases between 10 to 50
years.

H £2020F3R831HIEFE  BEYWHXZZHE
/54,0007 7T (2019 : 4,000 7T) ©

R2020F3A31H  WEMXBBIYIEXLE
MAEEMFSEITIEMARARETEMS - &
ENRERNERT S ZIRITEBKETT -

20204 K201943A31H » AEBERIBEY
2 RBZEHRMRES R I0ES0FERL#H
ﬁ °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUHRKRMEE

Investment property (Continued)
Valuation basis

The Group obtains independent valuations for its investment property
at least annually. In the current year, the valuation is performed by LCH
(Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an independent professionally qualified
valuer. At the end of each reporting period, the directors update their
assessment of the fair value of the property, taking into account the most
recent independent valuations. The directors determine a property’s value
within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for
similar investment properties. Where such information is not available the
directors consider information from a variety of sources including:

(i)  Current prices in an active market for properties of different nature
or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, adjusted
to reflect those differences;

(ii) Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows; or

(iii) Capitalised income projections based upon a property’s estimated
net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived from an
analysis of market evidence.

The valuation gain is included in “Other gains — net” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (Note 22).

BEWMEE)
HEREE

AEBELRNEFRERENEZBILMHEE -
RAFE  ABLEXREERMAEFETA
EMAERABETHE REFSHHEER
K EFeKEEROBYGERENRSY
MEAFEZE - EFHYEREEEREES
BREEATESEERA -

NHEZRERAR/BORENENEET S
ZHE - BEERERGREEANK 828
SRAMRER - B4

(i) TRUEEMENERTSZIREXARLY
ERBERM S O(E  HBARKRZ
FEE

(i) BEAIEMAFRERSRZEHEEFRRS
ok

(i) $EB§%¥Z?E§+$%H&N$%E;§Kﬂ:ﬁ”
WA - BERMEME TR T HERIIT

HEREREEE2ERER Hab ks — F58
G £22>°
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B R Rk M R

Investment property (Continued) 7 REWE#®)

Valuation basis (Continued) hEEEE)

The following table analyses the investment property carried at fair value TEREFAGEEE D ZIEAFEARZEE
by valuation method: MEZ DT

Fair value hierarchy AFEER

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2020 using

R2020F3 8318 2 AFEFEMKEA

Quoted prices in Significant other Significant
active markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HEEENERE HMEZEWHEE EZETUHEE
52 WE A B B A B
(B1#%) (%24%) (%3#%)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Recurring fair value measurements #& % A F{EsT =
— Car park space —[FE5 - 1,500 -

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2019 using

R2019F3 A3 H 2 A EFTEFMEHA

Quoted prices in  Significant other Significant
active markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HRABERERE HihEZEER FEERAEE
M52 HRIE BAE BAE
(B14%) (8B24%) (#3%)
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Recurring fair value measurements & &H 4 AFETE
— Car park space — (285 = 1,400 -
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of AEBEZBERBREMEEEBABERRES]
fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in BEBK  THRAATEERZEAREDL -
circumstances that caused the transfer.
There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year. RER - BEER - LR R B3R 2 HER -
Level 2 fair values of investment property has been derived using the REMEZ IR AT EEREELRT E -
direct comparison approach, which is based on comparing the property E YAk (B 90 56 B30 B AR 5 2 B3 b [ H At Al
to be valued directly with other comparable properties in close proximity, LY S ETERELLR -

which have recently transacted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B Rk MY R

8 Right-of-use assets 8 FEHEERE
Leasehold Land use
land rights Buildings Total
HETH T ERARE g5 st
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Year ended 31 March 2020 # Z202063H31H
LLFE
Opening net book amount FEEFE - - = =
Adoption of HKFRS 16 TRANE B IR S 2R
(Note 2.2) F165% (FFEE2.2) 10,633 3,879 19,617 34,129
Opening net book amount, as restated ~ FHIAREF(E KL E 10,633 3,879 19,617 34,129
Additions BN - - 61 61
Depreciation charge TERX (376) (153) (8,043) (8,572)
Exchange differences E R =58 - (247) (952) (1,199)
Closing net book amount FRERMEFE 10,257 3,479 10,683 24,419
At 31 March 2020 72020563H31H
Cost DN 15,520 7,399 18,551 41,470
Accumulated depreciation e i (5,263) (3,920) (7,868) (17,051)
Net book amount REFE 10,257 3.479 10,683 24,419
Notes: B EE -

(a)

(b)

The Group's interest in leasehold land is located in Hong Kong and held on
leases between 10 to 50 years, and for self-use.

The land use rights are located in China and held on leases of 50 years, and
for self-use.

The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 was HK$8,308,000 with
HK$7,902,000 being payments of principal elements and HK$406,000 as
payments for interest elements.

The Group's leasing activities and how these are accounted for

The Group leases various properties. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 1 year to 10 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the rental
deposits in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets were
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

128

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

(a)

(d)

REBPREE T2 AR BB ILLA10E50
FHRABAREEBRAR -

b 5 R RERL R AR B I ASOF AV IR B R ER
R -

2020F FH E 3R € i Y 48 58 /48,308,000 7T+ E
717,902,000 7T & A8 € &6 9 1< 35X 12 406,000 7T
BABEDK -

AEBEZHERSHREARTR

AEEBEEZEYE - HEANBEIEETE
HENF=105F - HEGRKRERNREZRE - £
ERETEGERE G - HEBZLEEING
HEAMFEEEE 2 HERE AIMIER R
o HMEAETA AEEERNZER® -

Annual Report 2019/2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4RE B AS 3R R T A

8 Right-of-use assets (Continued) 8 EHEEEM®)
Notes: (Continued) feE : (&)
(e)  There are no variable lease payments contained in the leases. (e) ZEHETBESHEMAUZHEEMNK -
(f)  Extension options () ErpREgE
Extension options are included in a number of property leases across the AEEBZZEMEMASRSELRRERE - ZF
Group. These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of BRI AREERS O EHRARE IR L
managing contracts. The majority of extension options held are exercisable EEEE  c RZEHABIEERENR
only by the Group and not by the respective lessor. REE M IEAERE B AT ©
9 Land use rights 9 TifEAARE
The Group's interests in land use rights represent right-of-use assets for REBER L EREZ BRI 2 ERESR
land and their net book value are analysed as follows: EREREFESTNOT
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Beginning of the year F4) 3,879 4,316
Reclassification to right-of-use assets on BRAN A B B 15 # 5 M Y 581 657 B BT
adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 2.2) DEEEAREEE(MF2.2) (3,879) =
Amortisation (Note 23) o (P E23) = (159)
Exchange differences ME N =5 = (278)
End of the year FR - 3,879

10 Financial assets at fair value through other 10 RAFEFAHMEZEKFZNITS

comprehensive income BE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Beginning of the year F1) 3,979 -
Reclassification from available-for-sale financial FER#NE A 755 S 2R 957 B
assets on adoption of HKFRS 9 A EMBEESHNHE - 3,928
Fair value gains transferred to OCI EEEH M2 E R 2 A ERE
(Note 20) (Ht¥£20) 84 51
End of the year FI 4,063 3,979
At 31 March 2020, the Group's financial assets at FVOCI represented 2020F3 A318 » NREEIR A FEG AEAD
investment bonds. The fair value of the investment bonds were based on THBRCVBEERKRERES - ZSRER
their current bid price in an active market provided by counterparties. The HF 2 ANTFEDBERZZH T REBRNEET
financial assets at FVOCI are denominated in USD. None of these financial B2 BEANBME « AT A AHMEEK
assets was either past due or impaired. ZHBEENEILAE - ZEWHEELFEE

HANORE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUHRKRMEE

11 Subsidiaries 11 WEAF
(a) Principal subsidiaries (a) EEHMEAA
The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 TREAEARARR2020F3IAMNBZEEH
March 2020: BRAa]:
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
principal place of  Kind of legal Class of issued share Interest
Name operation entity Principal activities shares held capital  held (iii)
EMRIE, BEfT
£ TEREHY ERERME IEXE FrisR e &5 BARE  FricER (i)
2020 2019
Charter Media Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding and trading of ~ Ordinary shares HK$5,000,000 100% 100%
company electro-acoustic products and
accessories
PEARAA A BREMARR REBBRAREEBBRERRAM EBER 5,000,000 100% 100%
Charter Media (Dongguan)  China Wholly foreign-  Manufacturing of electro-acoustic Ordinary shares  HK$190,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited (i) owned products and accessories
enterprise
PE(RR)ETF hE HMEBELR RETERERREM TER 190,000,000 100% 100%
BRAF()
Dongguan Full Rich China Wholly foreign-  Manufacturing and trading of Ordinary shares HK$11,000,000 100% 100%
Precision Metal Products owned precision metal parts
Company Limited (i) enterprise
R% EEFM nEfm  PHE HNEBELR REREERELERM EEER 11,000,000 100% 100%
BRAR)
Fujikon Industrial (BVI) British Virgin Islands  Limited liability ~ Investment holding Ordinary shares US$3,000 100% 100%
Limited (iii) company
Fujikon Industrial (BVI) ~ HEEZEE BREMERR REEK LER 3,007 100% 100%
Limited (iii)
Fujikon Industrial Company Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Design, manufacturing, marketing Class A HK$2,400,000 = =
Limited company and trading of electro-acoustic ~ (non-voting) (iv)
products and accessories
ETREXARATF &g BRAMLR it RE - EERRESEER MR 240000 - -
Rt (BRZER) (W)
Class B HK$600,000 100% 100%
(voting) (iv)

B 600,000/ 100% 100%
(BERE) W)

Fujikon International Hong Kong Limited liability  Investment holding Ordinary shares HKS3 100% 100%
Limited company
ETRERERAR  FE BREERNE  RERR Lk 3BT 100% 100%
Fujikon Packing Material ~ Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding and Ordinary shares HK$10,000 51%  51%
Company Limited company manufacturing and trading of
packaging materials
EIRERMNBRAF FA BRAEDE REBRURBEREERRMH Liamk 1000087 51%  51%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B R Rk M R

11 Subsidiaries (continued) 11 BT E)
(a) Principal subsidiaries (Continued) (a) FEMEBLARE)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
principal place of  Kind of legal Class of issued share Interest
Name operation entity Principal activities shares held capital held (iii)
EMRLEE BE#fT
£ TELEHY ERERME IERE FrisR 6 &5 RAFE  FricERi)
2020 2019
Fujikon Precision Metal Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding and Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100% 100%
Products Limited company manufacturing and trading of
precision metal parts
EIRREIEEMm A BREARR REBBRARBEREERE LER 10,0007 100% 100%
BRAA nekt
Full-Sound (Dongguan) China Wholly foreign-  Dormant Ordinary shares HK$19,400,000 100% 100%
Electrical Products owned
Limited (ii) enterprise
BE(RE)ERLM E NEBELR EBEERE EEB 19,400,000 100% 100%
BRAR i)
Keen Motion Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Provision of management services  Ordinary shares HKS2 100% 100%
company
ZRBRAA &k AREARR REEERE LER 27T 100% 100%
Landbo Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Property holding Ordinary shares HK$100 100% 100%
company
UREBRAH R BREARE WERA TR 10077 100% 100%
Maxchief Enterprises Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding and trading of ~ Ordinary shares HK$150 100% 100%
Limited company electro-acoustic products and
accessories
BELEXERDA ) BREARAR REZRIREEESERERREM ERR 1507 100% 100%
Profits (Dongguan) Electric ~ China Wholly foreign-  Dormant Ordinary shares HK$5,410,000 100% 100%
Products Company owned
Limited enterprise
BE(RR)Ex8m HE NEEELE EEEEH EBBR 5,410,000 100% 100%
BRAT
AudiKom Technik Limited  Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding Ordinary shares HKS2 100% 100%
company
BEENRERA Bt BREERR REEK el 2B 100% 100%
Smart Success Management  British Virgin Islands ~ Limited liability ~ Investment holding Ordinary shares US$100 100% 100%
Limited company
Smart Success Management B R X FS BREMAR  RAER LER 100270 100% 100%
Limited

£ 20192020 131 =+tmEg2pRERAS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B Rk MY R

11 Subsidiaries (continued)

(a) Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

11 B AT (®)
(a) TEMBEARE)

Particulars of

principal place of  Kind of legal Class of issued share Interest
Name operation entity Principal activities shares held capital held (iii)
MR, B&f
£ TELEHY HRERNE  ZEEH Fris R85 RARE  FricER (i)
2020 2019
Dong Guan Fortune Packing China Wholly foreign-  Manufacturing and trading of Ordinary shares HK$34,000,000 51%  51%
Products Company owned packaging materials
Limited (i) enterprise
REEXRBESM E NEBELR REREEREMH TBR 340000005 51%  51%

AR AR()

Qin Zhou Fortune Packing  China

Products Company owned packaging materials
Limited (i) enterprise
FMEBRERR e NEBERE HEREEERMH
BRAR)
Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Wholly foreign-

Charter Media (Dongguan) Company Limited, Dongguan Full Rich
Precision Metal Products Company Limited, Dong Guan Fortune Packing
Products Company Limited and Qin Zhou Fortune Packing Products
Company Limited are wholly foreign-owned enterprises established
in China to be operated for 35 years up to May 2029, 17 years up to
October 2021, 25 years up to November 2024 and 20 years up to July
2034, respectively.

As at 31 March 2020, Full-Sound (Dongguan) Electrical Products
Limited, a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in China, was
under deregistration progress.

The shares of Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited are held directly by the
Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

Holders of Class A (non-voting) shares have no voting rights, are not
entitled to dividends unless the net profit of the company exceeds
HK$900,000,000,000, and are not entitled to any distribution upon
winding up unless a sum of HK$900,000,000,000 has been distributed
by the Company to holders of Class B (voting) shares.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Manufacturing and trading of

Ordinary shares

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

RMB500,000 51%  51%

L@ ARE500000C 51%  51%

FE (Rox) BEFARAR RxE&REE
SHMBRAR ReERBEERER
ARFMNEEBEEMEGRAFER/RN
BIR 2 SN B A ¥ ZEREED B
3542 20294F5 A 174220214105 - 25
FE024F 11 A R205F 52034474 -

B D H

J

MR202053A31H - BB (FRE) EREMH
BRAR(NFEKZINEBELE)E
BEATRES o

Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited,Z f% {7 fa 2%
NRAEERE - R E R R 2 KknS
WEEREE -

AE(ERER)ROFE AL ERERE
IR R AR S - BRIEAR A R 41 FIEE B
900,000,000,00055 7T+ B HAE R I EEE
FEMS K K 2E900,000,000,0007% 7T 2
BEEBARADIKTFBE(BRER)K
MDA A °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBERKRMEE

11 Subsidiaries (continued) 11 B AT @)

(b) Material non-controlling interests

As at 31 March 2020, the total non-controlling interests were
HK$65,623,000 (2019: HK$61,763,000), solely representing their
interests in Fujikon Packing Material Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries,
namely Dong Guan Fortune Packing Products Company Limited and
Qin Zhou Fortune Packing Products Company Limited (the "“FPC
Group”).

Set out below are the summarised financial information for FPC
Group that has non-controlling interests that are material to the

(b) ERFEFIERER

202063 A31H - FEEFIMEREER
65,623,000 7T (2019 : 61,763,000/ JT ) °
ERERRELSBEEME AR AR REM
Brw IRZEEXREEZMARAFR
PMNEEREEBERAFR(EraaE
VIR SR ) 2 Rz o

TR FEABAKEEANZ I HI1E#
BZEITRERUHEEZMBEENT

Group. e

Summarised statement of financial position BBERARBE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$ " 000
Non-current assets FERENEE 26,852 23,026
Current assets MENBE 151,166 159,543
Current liabilities M EE (43,179) (56,521)
Non-current liabilities SERBAE (915) =
Net assets EEFE 133,924 126,048

£4 20192020 133 =+tmEgs
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11 Subsidiaries (continued) 11 B AT (®)

(b) EARFEHIERERE)

(b) Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised income statement Wss = 2
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Revenue A 347,044 343,201
Profit before income tax ¥R P45 556 Al A1 57,500 69,927
Income tax expenses Frisfis (10,787) (11,809)
Profit for the year & P A 46,713 58,118
Other comprehensive income H 2w (3,837) (3,952)
Total comprehensive income THEWEEEE 42,876 54,166
Total comprehensive income allocated to A BEE AT FI MR R A
non-controlling interests ER B 21,010 26,541
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests &1t F FE#5 Hl 12 &Y
% 8 17,150 19,600
Summarised cash flows Ren8me
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Net cash generated from operating activities X4 /EB)FT{S 2 IRE/F58 68,072 37,304
Net cash used in investing activities REEBFTA RS TR (7,233) (7,440)
Net cash used in financing activities BB EBFTA R e TR (40,631) (40,000)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash RENRESEE WM
equivalents OB ) #58 20,208 (10,136)
Exchange differences on cash and cash RekReSEBYMELZR
equivalents (721) (843)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~F ¥R & MKIREFEY
the year 43,513 54,492
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year F#XIFE& KIREEEY 63,000 43,513
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBERKRMEE

Inventories 12 78
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Raw materials B 61,070 136,038
Work-in-progress ERH 54,934 104,016
Finished goods BUAL T 56,578 73,822
172,582 313,876

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
cost of sales amounted to approximately HK$991,557,000 (2019:
HK$1,147,959,000). For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
has made a net provision for inventory obsolescence of approximately
HK$16,250,000 (2019: HK$6,133,000).

Trade and other receivables

The Group grants credit periods to customers ranging from 7 to 120
days. At 31 March 2020, trade receivables of HK$126,793,000 (2019:
HK$221,318,000) were neither past due nor impaired. These related to a
number of independent customers for whom there was no relevant history
of default. The amount of the provision was HK$7,399,000 as of 31
March 2020 (2019: HK$2,375,000).

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables by past due date is as
follows:

13

HRABILRFTAHERAZTFEXREANA
991,557,0007% 7£(2019 : 1,147,959,0005% 7T ) °
HE2000F383MBLFE - AEBEHZR
5% B 5 49 /516,250,00058 7T (2019 : 6,133,000
BT °

FE W & R K% H At FE KRR IR

NEBBETFEEIEI208 2EEH - 120204
38318 © & U & 7126,793,0007% Jt(2019 :
221,318,0007%% 7T ) N 4% 80 B ROR (B ° % T K
HEATUEMBBHERERCHENBLE
FER- B £2000F38318 #Ec8EA
7,399,00058 7T (2019 : 2,375,000i8 7T ) °

AR EZBRERZRESTOT

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

Current = B 126,793 221,318
1 to 30 days 1230H 27,977 20,968
31 to 60 days 31260H 12,477 11,894
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,697 2,164
Over 90 days 90H A £ 6,731 4,257
175,675 260,601

Less: Loss allowance for trade receivables B EINE R 2 EiE s (7,399) (2,375)
Trade receivables — net FEWE R — F%E 168,276 258,226
Other receivables H i e W TR IE 30,021 39,149
198,297 297,375
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B R ¥R AR M 5

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values.

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. Note 3.1(b) sets out the details about the calculation of the
allowance.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivable balances
are denominated in the following currencies:

13

FE W & R K HL At P KUK R ()

A ER B WU R R H At B MR R 2 BRI B A
ANEEE -

AEEEABEBMBHRELERNFEISR WA
AFEMBRKERZEARERER  EEAE
HIRHBEERE - AEBETENFBRRN
73.1(b) ©

7N £2 B 1 S R e Lt R W R TR A AR R T B DA
THEHSIE -

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

HKD T 9,774 7,566
RMB AR 28,658 53,289
usb e 159,865 236,520
198,297 297,375

The closing loss allowance for trade receivables reconcile to the opening

loss allowance as follows:

FEM B R R B R AR EF Y EIR RS < HiR
wr

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

Beginning of the year F 4] 2,375 2,352
Loss allowance for trade receivables JEWE TR 2 BB B4 5,067 871
Receivables written off as uncollectible ASE] U [E] 2 7 UK TE L 8 (43) (848)
End of the year FR 7,399 2,375

As at 31 March 2020, trade receivables from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 86.2% (2019: 77.4%) of the total trade
receivables. The Group's approach of managing credit risk is disclosed in
Note 3.

At 31 March 2020 and 2019, other receivables are not considered
impaired and have no relevant history of default.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

M20206F3A31H - REAARRF ZEWER
KR 4a PRI EF086.2% (2019 : 77.4%) ° NEEH
HIEERKR 2 EEFHRMEIRE -

20204 201943 8318 + H ith e I R IE I
RIAR B R (B TN KR HE R B SRR ©
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14 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 14 RAFEF ABEZNHMBEEE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Listed equity securities and investment fund FTREIZILFREEES 1,448 2,109
The fair value of all equity securities and investment fund at fair value BEATEIENZTIREESREEEEZA
is based on their current bid prices in an active market. Financial assets FEDBBEESRMSRITCEREERT °
at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in the following RAFEFABENMBEEEN TS EET
currencies: R
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
HKD BT 911 1,266
RMB NG 537 843
1,448 2,109
15 Cash and cash equivalents 15 RERBEEEY
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Cash at bank and on hand RITERRR 320,793 243,937
Short-term bank deposits RRERRITIE K 100,975 19,200
421,768 263,137
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was approximately RHRTERBERNEN AETF2.4E (2019
2.4% (2019: 1.6%) per annum. These deposits have an average maturity 1.6/2) - ZEFFRFHEEHR208 (2019 : 3
of 20 days (2019: 3 days). A) -
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies: ReERBSEEWATINEEIIEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
HKD BT 21,951 8,659
RMB AREE 152,046 86,394
usD = 244,088 162,264
Others Hith 3,683 5,820
421,768 263,137
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Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

At 31 March 2020, approximately HK$64,468,000 (2019: HK$30,585,000)
of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents placed with banks in China
were denominated in RMB, and were subject to foreign exchange control
regulations of China.

Trade payables, contract liabilities, accruals and
other payables

As at 31 March 2020, the ageing analysis of the trade payables by past
due date is as follows:

15 REeERBLSEEW @)

7202093 A31H + & & E #764,468,0007% T
(2019 : 30,585,000/ 7T ) 17 AU A B3R (N ER 1T
ZHEERBEESEEYWAARKEIE  XTHE
HNEE FISEIRATRF o

16 ENER - aEE EtEAR
HibFEfFIE
R2020F3 8318 - IRt E 2 BN E
RZ RO ¢

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

Current = 5 89,730 139,859
1 to 30 days 1230H 14,653 18,253
31 to 60 days 31260H 1,240 11,276
61 to 90 days 61290H 952 1,382
Over 90 days 90H A E 2,234 2,351
Trade payables EREH 108,809 173,121
Accruals and other payables (Note) et E B K E b e~ 2 E (B sE) 100,748 118,576
Contract liabilities SRAE 5,681 7,114
215,238 298,811

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other payables
approximate their fair values.

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabilities balance
at the beginning of the year amounted to HK$1,679,000.

Note: During the year, the Company has settled a regulatory fine of HK$1.0
million being imposed on the Company, the cost of Securities and Futures
Commission of HK$2.55 million, government costs and other professional
fees and expenses of approximately HK$1.5 million in relation to the Market
Misconduct Tribunal case. The unpaid legal costs remained approximately
HK$2.4 million (2019: HK$5.3 million) being included in the balance of
accruals and other payables as a result of reversal of over-provided legal
costs of HK$2.2 million after consideration of the estimated insurance

indemnities.

REE 2 BN B R S EL A FE 5 B0R 2 R {E 22
HAFERE -

AR REZ FH4EER1,679,0008 TTE R
L ONE

Mz : RER ARFRIBEENRTSERETAER
B 5 bt 0 F 78 R A E) A8 B 1 51581,000,000
B BFRRBESKERZEGCER
2,550,000 T RN EBERAREMEEXER R
1 3% £91,500,00078 7T © &£ & & (HFHRBR T E
1% 5] B R R A 12 B F B 42,200,000 T - iR
STAEGTERREMEN KB KT EREE
F3#92,400,0007% 7T.(2019 : 5,300,000/ 7T) °
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Trade payables, contract liabilities, accruals and
other payables (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables, contract liabilities,
accruals and other payables balances are denominated in the following
currencies:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4RE B AS 3R R T A

16 ERNER - 6HEE EEAR
HE R E2)

AEBZERNER  aEE  EHERARE
R IR R 2 FREE A T 5 E ¥R -

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$’000

HKD P TT 12,241 62,520
RMB AR 159,921 193,612
usb ETT 39,146 35,825
Others Hitb 3,930 6,854
215,238 298,811

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

Deferred income tax is calculated on temporary differences under the
liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by
the statement of financial position date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority.

17 BEFEREERER

BEEMEHREAABEERE R ZRRY AR
RAPEEMKBERMZHEAE

BEEMEHREER B BEEANIRE EEANH
BIRBEA GIA R SR BIFTT RN SR H MR
EFSHER - REEERMRE - SR AR
i o

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Deferred income tax assets: REFTISTEE -
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more 1 A KR 81218 B 1% Uk B 8
than 12 months RIEF IR E B 8,543 6,644
Deferred income tax liabilities: FEEFTISTAE -
Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after 1A KRB 218 B 1% Uk B 8
more than 12 months ELEFIAA & (1,825) (2,184)
6,718 4,460
#£320192020 139 E+rmEgzREaRAS
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17 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities (continved) 17 EEFEHEERERE &)

The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows: BIEFSHIRE 2 SB)FEMT
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April R4A1H 4,460 4,345
Deferred income tax credited to consolidated REFAEEEKRFIRPETA
statement of comprehensive income (Note 25) ZIESE TSR (B 7E25) 2,747 489
Exchange differences ME X =5 (489) (374)
At 31 March M3A318 6,718 4,460
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to FRRLEMEHEERBE(ER -
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the T 2 AR 2 BT

year are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets Provisions and others
BEFRESHEE BERHEM
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April R4A18 6,644 5,836
Credited to consolidated statement of REFE 2K ZmRPETA
comprehensive income 2,388 1,182
Exchange differences ME =R (489) (374)
At 31 March M3 A31H 8,543 6,644
Accelerated tax Withholding tax on
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation Others unremitted earnings Total
BEFRBHERE B E T Hit REREAR 2 FEH A5t

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 April WN4B1H (1,795) (1,463) (28) (28) (361) - (2,184) (1,491)
Credited/(charged) to i =Rl

consolidated statement of = A

comprehensive income (Z8H) (2) (332) - = 361 (361) 359 (693)
At 31 March M3A31H (1,797)  (1,795) (28) (28) = (361)  (1,825)  (2,184)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBERKRMEE

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities (continved) 17 EEFMEHREEREE 2
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards BEFTS T EEE L] 665 1B R R Al LA
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits through future HERABBIENE 2 ER N ERBIBEELS
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income B o RNE BRRERELFTS & & &799,000
tax assets of HK$799,000 (2019: HK$576,000) in respect of losses 75 70(2019 : 576,000 70 ) - BEBSESE A
amounting to HK$4,842,000 (2019: HK$3,493,000) that can be carried 4,842,0007%5 70(2019 : 3,493,000/ T )  :Z/E18
forward against future taxable income with no expiry date. CREA] TAEEE - DUHE 8 OR SR AT BB U s (I 4
= B E) o
As at 31 March 2020, deferred income tax liabilities have not been 2020637318 - AEBENERE THEB R
recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on certain Al 2B T RERBF G EEFES 2 BN ERE
amounts of unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries, as the Group is EFEHaE  ARAEEBENIEHIERE
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and RO 2RHE - BRI RAGRAIgEI HERNT
it is probable that no material temporary differences will be reversed in FrZ=fE ] ERE -
the foreseeable future.
Share capital 18 A
2020 2019
Number of Number of
shares shares
REE R EE
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
Ordinary shares, issued BETRHE
and fully paid: gl
Beginning of the year F 1) 425,839 42,584 421,067 42,107
Exercise of share options 4 7T {30 B AR 4
during the year - - 4,772 477
End of the year FR 425,839 42,584 425,839 42,584

During the year ended 31 March 2019, 4,772,000 shares of HK$0.1
each were issued upon exercise of the share options at an aggregate
consideration of HK$5,249,000. These shares rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing shares.

REZE2019F383MBEFE - AEKRERET
F3£974,772,000 R F R EBENB T2 KK - 2
KRB A5,249,0008 7 ° ZERMERE HHEH
HIRERNZE RSk -

£ 20192020 141 =+tsE2pRERAS
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Share options

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions of the Company passed on 21 August
2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme")
which complied with Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). At the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 3 August 2012, an ordinary
resolution was passed for the adoption of a new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”) and the termination of the Old Scheme. Under the share
option schemes, the Company may grant options to any eligible employee
(whether full-time or part-time, including any executive director), any
non-executive director, any shareholder, any supplier and any customer of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds any equity interest, and any other party having
contributed to the development of the Group to subscribe for shares in
the Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The subscription price will be determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors, and will not be less than the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.

Movements of share options under the Old Scheme during the year were
as follow:

19

R I

BIEARRD A R200268H21B BB 2 EBR
BR ARARMNFTEABMIATES ETRA
([ EMRADE1I7ERE 2 BIRETEI([ &5
2 ]) - RAFR201298 A3 BT 2R RASF
AE L BRLERERURNITBRAETE
([#aT8 ) WK IEETE - RIEERETE
ANABAHARARSKEEMHB QRS AE
EE @K ERRFETMRE A REE 2T
MEEREE(ZBIER  SETARNITE
B) FAERTES - EARE - TAIHEE
BREMNREF  REAASBEREELERZ
ERIEMA TR EEREARBRABRG -
WEFTS R0 TS RBIB AR R T 2 B 31T
AREEZ30% °

gEE

RBERHARRES
TREZ&RE :

I 1§ TEF A

BROMEXNE BERRZ TR RERAT
ZYHE

(a)

(b) BINERENEBRNAMERISBERR
MrERRERMIZFHETE: &
(0 MBpmE -

FREABAETZBREZHNT

Lapsed/ Lapsed/
Subscription Exercised cancelled Exercised cancelled
price per At during the  during the At during the  during the At
Date of grant  Exercise period share  01/04/2018 year year  31/03/2019 year year  31/03/2020
R R2018% FREM/  R2019F FRE¥/  R2020F
R e REE 4818 ERfE i 3A318 EAfE i 3A31H
HK$ ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
28/03/2012 28/03/2013 - 1.1 6,266 2,264 = 4,002 = = 4,002
27103/2022 (i)
28/03/2014 - 1.1 6,000 2,000 = 4,000 = = 4,000
27103/2022 (ii)
28/03/2015 - 1.1 2,122 508 152 1,462 = 54 1,408
27103/2022 (iii)
14,388 4,172 152 9,464 = 54 9,410
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19 Share options (Continued)

Notes:

(i)  The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from the date of
grant.

(ii)  The options were subject to a vesting period of two years from the date of
grant.

(iii)  The options were subject to a vesting period of three years from the date of
grant.

(iv)  The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before various
dates during 2019 on which the options were exercised was HK$1.27.

(v)  The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock

Exchange’s daily quotations sheet immediately before the dates on which the
options were granted were as follows:

Date of grant s dunl=p:]

Notes to

the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B R Rk M R

19 B

GERE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

ZEBREAZRLARET 2 —FHBEH
1 -
ZEBRMEAZE L ARG Z W F R B
1 -
ZEBREAZRELAMEF 2 =FEEH
1 -
120195 - RN EXZ [ERBAETEE B A

Z I ER1.2TETT ©

AARRRMD N EEBRER LS B AT ER AR
BIERIIL 2 W ENT

Closing price per share immediately
before the date of grant (HK$)
ZERHE AN 2 SRKHECET)

28 March 2012 201243 H28H

(vi) At 31 March 2020, outstanding options of 9,410,000 were exercisable (2019:
9,464,000).

(vii) The Company has used the Binomial Model for assessing the fair value of
the share options granted. According to the Binomial Model, the fair value
of the options granted during the year ended 31 March 2012 measured as at
the date of grant of 28 March 2012 was approximately HK$0.273, HK$0.288
and HK$0.294 per share, respectively, taking into account various factors,
variables and assumptions which include the following:

(i)  exercise multiple was applied to the historical information of the
option holders, on average, would exercise their options when the
stock price is 160% of the exercise price;

(ii)  the risk-free interest rate used was 1.27%;

(i)  the expected volatility was about 43%; and

(iv)  the expected annual dividend yield of 5.73%.

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of continuously
compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share
prices over the last ten years.

As at 31 March 2020, no share options were granted under the New
Scheme.

(vii)

1.1

7202043331 + 9,410,000 (2019 : 9,464,000) 13
ARITEERE AR R] T1T7{% -

ARRFAZBEAEXTEAELERE 2 A
FE - RIBZIEAER - REZ2012463A31H
IEFEE T BRE 2 ATFE(3Z201263 A28H
B E) S RIX A ER0.273# T © 0.288
BT R0.2948TT - WE RZHERER - #HK
B - BIE -

() BAEEBHERINTERGE  RULEE
B BRERA AT RREZEDITE
182 160%F517 {5 BE AR

(i) FREFEZERRBRAERI2IE

(i) TEAIRRERKEIERL AR43% &

(iv) TEFFEFEREMEER5.73% °

BB A R (D B R B BRI TR R
B+ B Z R D TS -

720206F3 8318 © BERBEIA IR HER

1E -

£45 20192020 143 E+rtsm%2ERERLT
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20 Other reserves

20 HEibRE

Property Capital  Statutory Share
Share revaluation reserve reserve Investment option  Exchange
premium reserve (i) (ii) reserve reserve reserve Total
nx  BEXRE  LEERB SRR
RVEE EREHE (i) (i) RERB wE  ELiRE Bt
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2018 201854810 113,526 1,041 1,607 4,190 38 4,067 67,270 191,739
Currency translation [E % =5
differences - - - - - - (24,746) (24,746)
Fair value gains on R A FEzT AE M
financial assets 2HEREH
at Fvocl BEZATERR = = = - 51 - - 51
Employee share (RS BEMREA 2 -
option scheme:
— lapse of share  —BIRIELM
options - - - = = (45) = (45)
- Proceeds from  —7T{FEEREME
shares issued 1kt 2 Fifg
i I
upon exercise B
of share
options 4,772 = = = = = = 4,772
— Exercise of —1Ifb iR E
share options 1,344 - - - - (1,344) - -
At 31 March 2019 7A2019%3A31H 119,642 1,041 1,607 4,190 89 2,678 42,524 171,71
Currency translation [E % =5
differences - - - - - - (22,107) (22,107)
Fair value gains on A FET AEA
financial assets 2 EUER K BT
at VOl BEZATENE - - - - 84 - - 84
Employee share (RS ERERE -
option scheme:
— lapse of share ~ —EIRIELM
options - - - - - (16) - (16)
Appropriation of BT AT E
statutory reserve = = = 1,548 = = = 1,548
At 31 March 2020 742020%3A31H 119,642 1,041 1,607 5,738 173 2,662 20,417 151,280
Notes: BT

(i)  Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of
the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the aggregate amount of
the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries acquired through an
exchange of shares pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation in March 2000.

(i)  Statutory reserve represents general reserve fund required to be set up
pursuant to the laws of China for the Group’s subsidiaries in China. The
general reserve fund can only be used to make up for losses incurred,
increase registered capital or use for collective welfare of employees.

144
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(ii)

BABEREARRMZETYBRR 2 EERERBE
200073 A AN B EA TR MUEE 2 B A
AR AN R R (BTN 2 =58 o

EERBREARBTEEZAREERTEZ
MELRRIN - REFES - —RERES
ERAERAER  ENEMEALBERESR

ZEBEA -
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21 Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in the design, manufacturing, marketing
and trading of electro-acoustic products, accessories and other electronic
products and property holding. Revenues recognised during the year are

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4RE B AS 3R R T A

21 A

AEETENERG  2E HEMHEER
Em EfMEMETERLBENE - F/
HERZWAIT :

as follows:
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Sales of merchandise EmiHE 1,243,222 1,402,061
Handling income BRIEWA 6,752 9,532
Management fees EIRE 168 175
Rental income A2 UA 31 27
1,250,173 1,411,795
22 Other gains — net 22 Hiizs — F8
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fair value losses on financial assets at FVPL BAFEFABRN

BHEEZ A TFEEE (661) (36)

Fair value gains on investment property KEME 2 A EKRE
(Note 7) (F7E7) 100 200

Net gains on disposal of property, plant and HEWME  BEMERE
equipment 2 Was F R 253 770
Net foreign exchange gains M 5 Wz /5 58 1,741 7,112
1,433 8,046

£35 20192020 145 s+rsmgezrewL
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23 Operating profit 23 &R
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting) the following: ESERB R (GTA) TFI&IE -
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Auditor's remuneration ZERN < 1,595 1,686
Amortisation of land use rights + b (s FARE 2 B = 159
Cost of inventories (Note) FEKA KR 991,557 1,147,959
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y BEMREZTE 34,271 30,996
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZINE 8,572 =
Operating lease rental of premises M2 SEMOEE - 8,596
Expenses relating to short-term leases and low P AHERENEHEE
value lease payments not included in lease MMEEERENTERZ
liabilities S H 16 -
Provision for inventory obsolescence RERBHE 16,250 6,133
(Reversal of provision)/provision for legal costs FEBA(OE), B
(Note 16) (Kfzx16) (2,171) 6,219
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) BELXH(BREESEHS)
(Note 28) (HMi728) 361,667 397,821
Note: Costs of inventories included but not limited to costs of materials, e TEXKABEETIERERKAN 288
subcontracting charges, certain staff costs and manufacturing overheads. A ETEEXHRBUEER -
24 Finance income - net 24 MEWA-FE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest income from FEBWARE
— financial assets at FVOCI —RAFEFARMEE
e BB 75 & 257 185
— bank deposits —IRITER 4,928 4,411
_Financeincome  BEERA 5185 4,596
Interest expense on FEXH
— bank borrowings —RITIEE (34) -
— lease liabilities —HEAE (406) -
— others —HAh (25) (24)
_Financecosts . BERXx Lo (465) 24)
4,720 4,572
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 Income tax expenses 25

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until March 2035.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from
Hong Kong for the year. The Group’s subsidiaries in China are subject to
China Corporate Income Tax at a rate of 25% (2019: 25%) on estimated
assessable profits.

Pursuant to the New Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. Withholding taxes are
payable on dividends distributed/to be distributed by those subsidiaries
established in China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

FrE®i <

=
me

R E

AARRHAREREEZE2035F3 ALt

EEMNESHBBORBEARESEELIRE
BB 2 (T ER T & F 2A16.5% (2019 : 16.5%)
RETE - REBRFEZHEA R ERG
[ AR 0% I LA25% (2019 : 25% ) B R 435 b [

RN

RIEFFLE - BABEIMNEEE SRR B R F E
PRI 2 SN 1R B 1 S R AR B EUR10%TE N E -
R E 52008451 A1 8 A A I # A 720074
12ANBEAEAZAEF - 4 BEERINGE
EFMBREER ZEEABBEREL - BIA
RREBINREER - At - KB ERZE
FAHR B AR 7 2 B B8 R Rl 5£20084F1 A1 A B E £
ZBRMDIR/ 1T 2R EEBRIEINF -

e 2 EmRER AR THIA SRR

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000

Current income tax g HPET
— Current tax on profits for the year — FRR ANz & BT E 19,388 20,169
— Under/(over)-provision in prior years —FERRCBE)BE 17 (60)
— Withholding tax on dividends — & B FEHE 1,389 =
20,794 20,109
Deferred income tax credit (Note 17) RIEFTS R R (FTEE17) (2,747) (489)
18,047 19,620

£45 20192020 147 =E+sE2pRERAT
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REUHRKRMEE

25 Income tax expenses (Continued)

25

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the home

country of the Company as follows:

EHRIEHE)

AREL BB TS B AT & M 2 IR B4R AR 1 R P B
BRZREFHE 2 BREE2ERNWT :

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

Profit before income tax R P45 B4 Bl & A 69,928 88,588
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% L H%£16.5% (2019 : 16.5%)

(2019: 16.5%) FTE 11,538 14,452
Effect of different taxation rates in China RABRTERRE 2 & 82 (341)
Income not subject to taxation RN 2 WA (942) (949)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purpose NA] pE AR T R < 2 7,956 4,836
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses i FA /& “E AR FE R 2 TH 1% 518 (1) (1,956)
Tax losses not recognised RIERZ TS 18 147 690
Under/(over)-provision in prior years TFERRE/CBR)EE 17 (60)
Withholding tax on dividends g B TR 1,028 361
Others HAh (1,778) 2,587

18,047 19,620
26 Dividends 26 B2
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interim dividend paid of HK2.0 cents BT EAAR B SR R AR

(2019: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share 2.07511 (2019 : 4.071L) 8,517 16,849
Proposed final dividend of HK3.0 cents BEARAREEREBR

(2019: HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share 3.0 1L (2019 : 5.0711L) 12,775 21,292

21,292 38,141

At a meeting held on 18 June 2020, the Board of Directors recommended
a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per ordinary share amounting to a total
of HK$12,775,000. The proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend
payable in these consolidated financial statements, and will be reflected
as appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31 March 2021.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

M2020F6 18R RT3 L EECES
TRAT = 0% B A R BR AR B3.08 1l - AEa X
12,775,000 7T - EERE T EEZEHREY
BREPIIERME » 15 RN E Z=2021
FIANBIUEFEZRBEFDER -
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27 Earnings per share

Basic

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B R Rk M R

27 BRER

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable

to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2R

BRERBNTIAGB AR BRERA A 2R
MERAFRNE BT EBRZ NETFIHEEE -

2020 2019
Profit attributable to equity holders of the BEBARNRMEEREE A
Company (HK$'000) 2@ (FAETT) 28,991 40,490
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in BEITERRZ
issue (in thousands) IniEFEEE(TRR) 425,839 422,566
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FIREAREF) (L) 6.8 9.6

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted

average number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion of

all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has one category of

dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options. For the share options,

a calculation is done to determine the number of shares that could have

been acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual market

price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the

subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of

shares calculated as above is compared with the number of shares that

would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

g

BREFRNTRBREETEINERERZN
BTPHERBRMEEEESEBREBIRG
H-ARAE-—REEHSLTEAR  HNBEKR
- EBREME - DREEARITEBRAEMR
MREE SR EEETHAEAETATRAT
BE(EERARRBRM 2 FHEFHE)KREZ
BB E - EXFE 2RO A BRRBRE
BITEREBETZROBBESE -

2020 2019

Profit attributable to equity holders of the FEBAQRRERFEA

Company (HK$'000) s (FET) 28,991 40,490
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in BEITERRZ

issue (in thousands) IniEFEEE(TRR) 425,839 422,566
Adjustment for potential dilutive effect in MEARITEREREZ

respect of outstanding share options BIEEE 2 EL

(in thousands) T (FRR) 373 1,515
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for s+ EGREHER T~

diluted earnings per share (in thousands) @A N S E(TFR%) 426,212 424,081
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) SREERF CEI) 6.8 9.5

3R 2019/2020
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Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)

28 EEXH(BREESH)

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

Wages and salaries ITERF® 310,295 354,979

Other staff benefits Hi B TEF 18,422 15,124
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BAReE—F5E

(Note 32) G (H3E32) 32,950 27,718

361,667 397,821

(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) AEESFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the FRNAEELEHESFALEE=S

Group for the year include three (2019: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 29. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2019: two) individuals
during the year are as follows.

(2019: =ZR)EZ - FEZHESERNH
2R R Z DT R - FERENBRTRA
(2019 : WB)A LT 2B 0T ©

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Wages and salaries TEREGS 5,075 5,085
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BRI H — T
(Note 32) HRETEI (M RE32) 21 24
5,096 5,109
The emoluments of the afore-mentioned individuals fell within the FRATZBEN R TEER :
following bands:
Number of individuals
A&
2020 2019
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) [ ElCG )
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 L
2,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 T2
3,000,000/ 7T 2 1

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited 1 50
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29 EEEFRER

29 Benefits and interests of directors

151

3R 2019/2020

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM<
Salary,
allowances Pension costs
and benefits Discretionary and share
Name of Directors Fees in kind bonuses options Total
¢ 28 BiReXH
BEEpE re REVEAN BIERA RERE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
For the year ended 22020634318
31 March 2020 LEE
Executive Directors WiTES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny i3
(Chief Executive Officer) (TTEBH) = 2,465 = 3 2,468
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon TR 1 48 - 2,396 - 3 2,399
Chow Man Yan, Michael BAx - 2,396 - 3 2,399
Yuen Chi King, Wyman R - 1,676 - 21 1,697
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben 1B R - 1,879 - 21 1,900
Chow Lai Fung [EEE - 1,676 - 21 1,697
Independent non-executive BUFRTES
Directors
Chung Chi Ping, Roy EEY 250 - - - 250
Che Wai Hang, Allen B#E 250 - - - 250
Lee Yiu Pun R 250 - - - 250
For the year ended #Z2019%63A31H
31 March 2019 LEE
Executive Directors WiTES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny i3
(Chief Executive Officer) (TTE#BH) = 2,369 970 3 3,342
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon TR 1 48 - 2,304 970 3 3,277
Chow Man Yan, Michael BAx - 2,304 970 3 3,277
Yuen Chi King, Wyman TRTAR - 1,612 499 21 2,132
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben B - 1,807 499 21 2,327
Chow Lai Fung FEEE - 1,612 499 21 2,132
Independent non-executive BUFRTES
Directors
Chung Chi Ping, Roy EEF 250 - - - 250
Che Wai Hang, Allen B#E 250 - - - 250
Lee Yiu Pun R 250 - - - 250
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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29 Benefits and interests of directors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking.

No remuneration has been paid by the Group to the Directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office during the current and prior years. There was no
arrangement under which a Director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the current and prior years.

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits
or termination benefits during the year (2019: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’
services (2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
in favour of the directors, or controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2019: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2019: Nil).

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

29 EEENRERE)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEME )
P i

i) FMEMALTREZSOH(THA/EAARK
HIE A B TR (AR TS B 15 3k FE A< 9 B

AEERENRBEFERERAESRX
NS - AERTEIIMASEIMAREE
Rz BB AMBMAAEZHE -RE
AIRBEFEMEETNRLARENE
RS2 5k

ESEREANRRLERER

FA - BEEE S WA EUETR R
BRI I EREEF (2019 : &) -

BRREHESRBEAF=FRHE2KE

HZE2020F3A318 ILFE » AR A E
REEEERERNTAE=ZASIHRE
(2019 : £) o

FRUEE - ESEZHZEREEE
BASTAZER EEFRREMAR
5 2 EH
BMEELAES 3 H
BRAIZAZER
ZHE(2019 : &) o

FEHDEE N BiE
EREEMZ S

=
s

EERNRG  ZHAEHNHZERK
i

RERRFREAER  LEFEAKE
EBMARBMEREF - AARRES
REP(TRBERSRER) BEEEAER L
BEARS  RERAHI(2019: ) -
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30 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows 30 ZEHREHRERKE

(a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated () AEEBNEKEERABZ2REZ
from operations: R -
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit for the year RERZ 51,881 68,968
Adjustments for: BT EAELFE
— Amortisation of land use rights — - Hb {5 R 2 8 = 159
— Depreciation of property, plant and — W% - BEKEE
equipment ZHE 34,271 30,996
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —(ERREEZTE 8,572 -
— Finance income — net —REWA — 5 (4,720) (4,572)
— Income tax expenses — PSR 18,047 19,620
— Fair value losses on financial assets at — R A THER AEZRR
FVPL BMBAEZATE
&8 661 36
— Fair value gains on investment property — R EMENTEZ WS (100) (200)
— Net gains on disposal of property, plant —HEWE  HERRE
and equipment W E R (253) (770)
— Provision for inventory obsolescence —REEE 16,250 6,133
— Loss allowance for trade receivables — B E BB RS 5,067 871
— Exchange differences —[EH =5 (4,328) (12,175)
125,348 109,066
Changes in working capital: LBEESEE)
— Inventories —FE 106,669 (97,560)
— Trade receivables —rEWEH 83,644 (32,194)
— Other receivables — B th FEUGRIR 6,894 (10,997)
— Trade payables —ENER (56,149) (22,310)
— Contract liabilities, accruals and other —AHBaE - EtER
payables PEL N AN/ (14,925) 29,457
Cash generated from/(used in) operations TSRS (BTA)
ZRE 251,481 (24,538)

£4 20192020 153 =+rtmEg2pREmRAT
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30 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows
(Continued)

(b) Analysis of changes in financing activities during the

30 EBERERHMT &)

(b) FAREBEZEEB DT :

year:
Share capital and share premium
BRA R B4R E
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April R4ag18 162,226 155,633
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options 77 {5 B& M4 i 2517 A () - 5,249
Employee share option scheme: EEBREE
— Exercise of share options — 1T AR = 1,344
At 31 March M3H31H 162,226 162,226
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as REESMELE 2 BEHEERAT :
follows:
Dividend Bank Lease
payable  borrowings liabilities Total
EABRE RITEE HEAE #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2018 R2018%4818
Dividends declared EEIRRKRE 57,671 - - 57,671
Dividends paid EfRE (57,671) - - (57,671)
At 31 March 2019 M2019%3H31H = = = -
Adjustment on adoption of RN E B 75 R & 2 E
HKFRS 16 1657 2 FHE - - 19,617 19,617
Cash flows: REME
— Drawdown on borrowings —IREUVEE - 10,000 - 10,000
— Repayment on —BEEE
borrowings - (10,000) - (10,000)
— Repayment on principal —EEHEaEZ
element of lease iNco 5
liabilities - - (7,902) (7,902)
- Repayment on interest —EEHEaEZ
element of lease MEZBD
liabilities - - (406) (406)
— Dividends paid —BfI’RE (46,959) - - (46,959)
Other non-cash movements:  E {th JEIR & & &) :
— Additions of right-of-use — R EEEE N
assets - - 61 61
— Finance costs — B SRR X - - 406 406
— Dividends declared —BEIRRE 46,959 - - 46,959
— Exchange differences —[EN =5 - - (956) (956)
At 31 March 2020 7202053 A31H = = 10,820 10,820

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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31 Commitments
(a) Capital commitments

The Group had the following authorised and contracted capital
commitments:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBERKRMEE

fN =]

31 &iE
(a) BAEE
AEETOEERDITNEANERENT

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Acquisition of machinery and equipment B8 B M K BR A 2,173 2,828

(b)

Non-cancellable operating leases

From 1 April 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use assets for
the operating leases, where the Group is a lessee, except for short-
term and low-value leases. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable short-term and low value leases (2019: all) with
fixed rent only which fall due as follows:

(b) FAFEzEEHE

B2019F4 18 » NEBE B AL (F Q%
HAZRLTHERRERESE - HEEH
MEBEMEERI - RBREHR - AEH
MAREH 2R REEEHEE2019:
2 AR RFERENKR(RREE
Me) 2 BIHERMT

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Not later than one year TEBB1F 78 8,597
Later than one year and not later than five BB FETEBBSF
years 85 11,754
163 20,351
32 Pension obligations 32 RRE&EE
The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the REEZHEEREELEA LB IUEIAE

Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. The assets of
the fund are held separately from those of the Group and are managed by
independent professional fund managers. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group and its employees make monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer's and the employees’
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month, as appropriate,
as defined in the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance, and thereafter
contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in China, the Group contributes
to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees in China. The
employees contribute up to 8% of their basic salaries, while the Group
contributes to retirement plans approximately at 13% to 19% of the
basic salaries of its employees in China, and has no further obligations
for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The
state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.
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Related party transactions

The Company’s directors consider there is no ultimate holding company

as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

(a) The following significant transactions were carried out

with related parties:

33 BEALIRS

BEREIEB AT

20204 K20195F3 A31 8 » AARIEEFR AL

(a) AEBMEEBEALTZEARZUT

Name of related party/nature of transaction BEALTZER TZMHE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
The Bright Printing Press and Paper Products 3¢ BRI = ED 7S 4% G Jik
Limited (i) AR A)
— Sales of merchandise to the Group —RAKEHEE R 77 267
— Management fees paid/payable to the —B/ BN EE
Group ZEREH 12 19
— Handling fees paid/payable to the Group —B/EMNAEEZ
FRiE & 12 =
First Success Technology Limited (i) 2EHERAR AT
— Lease payment paid/payable by the Group —AEEE FER
ZHERRK 1,133 1,077
— Management fees paid/payable to the —B/ BN EE
Group ZEBEA 156 156
Note: MizE -

(i) Both companies are wholly owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr.
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael, directors of the

Company.

In the opinion of the Company's directors, the above related party
transactions were conducted in the usual course of business of
the Group and in accordance with terms mutually agreed by the
respective parties.

(b) Key management compensation

Key management personnel are the Company's executive directors.
Details of compensation of key management personnel are disclosed
in Note 29 to the financial statements.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

(b)

(i) ZMEARBAARRADESHEMHESL
& RMALERAXCEERERS °

ARBREERR  LABEALRSZ TN
AEE—REFBRTET  WIRET W
TEZNRFAETT °

TEEEASHM

TEEEABRARRANTES - TEF
B A8 2 # B R B AR 29 -
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34 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the 34 XARIEEEBRNHEESD

Company
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (a) AAFREEAEBX
As at 31 March
M3H31H
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR 2 RE 142,468 142,468
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H fth pE U kIR 2,593 347
Amounts due from subsidiaries I ENGIE e 189,038 206,476
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBEEEEY 656 992
Current income tax recoverable Al Y Bl ERFT 1S AL 186 -
Total current assets mENEEAE 192,473 207,815
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables FEET B A M E b FES I8 4,305 11,206
Current income tax liabilities EHIfER AR o 242
Total current liabilities mEE EAE 4,305 11,448
_Netcurrentassets  ______ _ #®BEE®E [ 1881 196,367
Net assets EEZFE 330,636 338,835
Equity S
Capital and reserves attributable to the SREAQNTREZEAZ
Company's equity holders BAR
Share capital R% A 42,584 42,584
Other reserves Hith 261,104 261,120
Retained earnings 1R BB & 7| 26,948 35,131
Total equity EEAE 330,636 338,835
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of RAFEEBEREN2020566 7180 %
Directors on 18 June 2020 and was signed on its behalf. EEEHERBUTERRRES -
YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY YUEN YEE SAI, SIMON
Chairman Joint Deputy Chairman
FE R EI L

£4 20192020 15/ =+tsE2pRERAT
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34 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the 34 ARAFREEEBEREFEEESH &)
Company (Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ADTHERE
Share  Contributed Share option Retained
premium surplus (i) reserve earnings Total
BinaE BHBHR(G) BRERE KRBT et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2018 M2018F481A8 113,526 138,800 4,067 45,228 301,621
Profit and total comprehensive FREMNEEE
income for the year llgayiotc] - - - 27,929 27,929
Employee share option scheme: (22 ETE -
— Lapse of share options —FEIRER = = (45) 45 -
— Proceeds from shares issued —{T{hEERRIE
upon exercise of share mErTR D
options pdzics s 4,772 = = = 4,772
- Exercise of share options —{T{E RN 1,344 - (1,344) - -
Dividends paid BERIRE = = = (38,071) (38,071)
At 31 March 2019 20194343108 119,642 138,800 2,678 35,131 296,251
Profit and total comprehensive FREFEREE
income for the year W 4asa - - - 21,610 21,610
Employee share option scheme: (B EBEAE ] -
~ Lapse of share options —BERRAER = = (16) 16 -
Dividends paid BRRE - - - (29,809) (29,809)
At 31 March 2020 M2020%3831H 119,642 138,800 2,662 26,948 288,052
Note: B &E

(i) Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal

value of the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset

value of a subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares pursuant

to the Group's reorganisation in March 2000.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

(i)

BHERIEAARMBITEBRR 2 E@E
AR 1K2000F3 A N EE A B ITRARM
KWE—EHEBAREEFEZESE -
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Board of Directors
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Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman

Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben
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Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen
Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

Audit Committee

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun (Chairman)
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen
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Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen (Chairman)
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun
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